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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWR DT

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$405.7 million, representing 2.1%
decrease as compared with approximately HK$414.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. Loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 was approximately HK$34.4 million, as compared with loss of
approximately HK$5.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Such increase in net loss is primarily attributable to loss incurred by
the trading business segment, increase in finance costs and losses
arising from share of results of an associate during the year ended 31
December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, in the light of quantitative
easing policy and improved enterprise fundamentals in PRC, the Hong
Kong stock market has been in active trading. However, a global turmail
triggered by uncertainties of US interest rate hike, downward pressure
on commodity prices and slowing growth of the PRC economy has
caused a large scale correction in the Hong Kong stock market since
June 2015. Despite continuous fluctuation in local stock market, Hong
Kong remains one of the preferred options for global initial public
offering.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the total revenue of Sheng
Yuan Financial Services Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “SYFSG Group”) increased by 187.8% to approximately HK$171.5
million (2014: approximately HK$59.6 million). Net profit from the
SYFSG Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
HK$10.1 million, representing 49.2% decrease from HK$19.9 million
when compared to the year ended 31 December 2014.

Staff costs of the Group increased from HK$35.5 million to HK$161.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 was mainly due to the
bonus paid to the staff of SYFSG Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWR D

For securities business, the revenue from securities brokerage and
financial services during the year ended 31 December 2015 increased
to approximately HK$130.6 million as compared with approximately
HK$57.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. Such increase
in revenue was mainly due to the receipt and recognition of the
commission and underwriting fee income related to the public offering
of the shares of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. by Sheng Yuan Securities
Limited (“SYSL”), as well as the completion of placement transactions
of various Hong Kong listed companies by SYSL acting as the placing
agent.

For asset management business, Sheng Yuan Asset Management
Limited (“SYAM”) acts as the fund manager or investment adviser for 11
funds as at 31 December 2015. The total assets under management of
SYAM have exceeded HK$3.8 billion as at 31 December 2015. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, SYAM recorded segment revenue
of approximately HK$40.9 million, representing 18.6 times of that of the
last year (2014: approximately HK$2.2 million).

In order to provide a new stream of income for its financial business,
the SYFSG Group expanded the proprietary trading business during
the year ended 31 December 2015 and mainly invested in listed
shares in Hong Kong market and private fund. The segment profit from
proprietary trading business for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$4.3 million (2014: segment loss of HK$11.0 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue from trading
business decreased to HK$234.2 million, representing 34.0% decrease
compared with approximately HK$355.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, mainly because the global commodities was seriously
hit during the year ended 31 December 2015, with a successive
plunge in oil price as well as a significant fall in the price of energy
and metal minerals, which challenged the trading business of such
products. As such, the trading business of the Group recorded a loss
of approximately HK$5.9 million during the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: profit of approximately HK$0.009 million). The Group has
suspended its trading business in the second half of the year ended 31
December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWR DT

In October 2014, the Group has completed its acquisition of
approximately 24.975% equity interest in Xinhua (Daging) Merchandise
Exchange Company Limited FTE(XKB)ERRXSAMER A A,
“XHME”), a merchandise exchange company established in Heilongjiang
Province, the PRC (the “Acquisition”). XHME is engaged in the operation
of an electronic merchandise exchange platform for commodity goods
trading, which provides trading, clearing financing and logistics services
to suppliers and purchasers on the electronic trading platform.

Pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase acquisition agreement
dated 11 September 2014 (the “Acquisition Agreement”) entered into by
the Company and World Tycoon Limited (the “Vendor”), the Company
is required to allot and issue 556,585,714 consideration shares as the
second payment of the consideration to the Vendor within 14 days
after the auditor appointed by the Company confirms that XHME has
recorded audited consolidated net profit before tax in the amount of
HK$50 million (the “Profit Target”) on any day within 365 days from the
date of completion of the Acquisition (the “Profit Target Period”).

According to the management accounts of XHME for the Profit
Target Period, XHME recorded net losses for the Profit Target Period.
The Vendor agreed that XHME incurred net losses during the Profit
Target Period and there was no need for the Group to prepare the
audited accounts of XHME for the Profit Target Period as required in
the Acquisition Agreement. As XHME did not fulfill the Profit Target
requirement, the Group is not required to settle the second payment of
the consideration.

Since the last quarter of 2014, XHME has experienced a change of its
management team which has unavoidably affected its operations and
results. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group noticed
that XHME has put its effort to recruit its management and develop
its business plans. It is expected that improvement in the operation of
XHME will be seen in 2016.

HRant
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWR D

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the complexity and fluctuation of the market is likely to
sustain against a backdrop of various challenges from market decline,
slower economy and intensive industrial competition. However, due
to increasingly close market interactions between Hong Kong and
Mainland China, including the Mutual Recognition of Hong Kong and
China Fund Program approved at the end of 2015 and the Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect Program possibly to be launched early
2016, Hong Kong is expected to usher in new business opportunities.

Apart from its traditional brokerage business, SYSL will further develop
their intermediary businesses such as underwriting of IPO, placement of
private notes, bonds and funds, as well as shares to deliver steady profit
growth. SYAM will continue to step up its efforts in funds management
and customised discretionary investment services to expand its
customer base, at the same time keeping abreast of the market trends.
Sheng Yuan Capital (Hong Kong) Limited will march on financial advisory
businesses such as corporate financing, merger and acquisition. For
proprietary trading, the Group plans to increase its investment in fixed
income products, seeking investment opportunities arising from the
fluctuation of secondary market and also looking for opportunities for
PE investment in due course.

Besides, in May 2015, the SYFSG Group has established a wholly
owned subsidiary, Sheng Yuan Global High Growth Industries Fund
Series SPC, in Cayman lIsland, acting as an all-round off-shore
investment platform and bringing further opportunities for the Group to
invest globally.

Looking ahead, in spite of various difficulties, the SYFSG Group will
remain cautious in identifying opportunities during the operation of its
business in a stable way, and aims to surpass targeted net profit in
2016.

The Group is currently exploring investment opportunities with its
mainland business partners in relation to establish a joint venture
brokerage firm in the PRC with full licences to carry on securities related
business to capture opportunities arising from the latest development in
the capital markets in the PRC. The CEPA and QFIl (“Qualified Foreign
Institutional Investor”) frameworks and other newly announced initiatives
such as QDII (“Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor”) have seen
China’s financial markets gradually open which facilitates the Group’s
diversification and expansion of business development geographically.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWR DT

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

There was no material acquisition or disposal during the year ended 31
December 2015.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, cash and bank balances in general accounts
maintained by the Group were approximately HK$60.5 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 36.0% from approximately
HK$94.5 million as at 31 December 2014. Balances in trust and
segregated accounts were approximately HK$51.4 million (2014:
HK$10.5 million). Trade and other receivables and prepayments were
approximately HK$291.2 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK$250.0 million), which mainly represented increased receivables
from asset management services and increased trade volume arising
from business of securities brokerage. Trade and other payables and
accruals have increased from approximately HK$22.7 million as at 31
December 2014 to approximately HK$117.0 million as at 31 December
2015, which was also attributable to the accrual of staff bonus and
increased trade volume arising from business of securities brokerage.

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 December
2015 were approximately HK$587.5 million (2014: HK$427.7 million)
and approximately HK$344.4 million (2014: HK$180.3 million)
respectively. The borrowings as at 31 December 2015 amounted
to HK$222.3 million (2014: HK$154.9 million) due to increase in
collateralised borrowings. The gearing of the Group, measured as total
debts to total assets, remained healthy at approximately 55.2% as at
31 December 2015 despite increasing from approximately 54.7% as
at 31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2015, the Group recorded
net assets of approximately HK$178.3 million as compared with
approximately HK$214.2 million as at 31 December 2014, with the
decrease largely due to the loss recorded during the year ended 31
December 2015. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
financed its operations with internally generated cash flow and funds
from convertible bonds issued.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWR D

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars (‘USD”), and Renminbi (“RMB”). During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group used foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the Group’s currency exposure in relation to
foreign currency receivables. As at 31 December 2015, the Group does
not held outstanding commitments to sell RMB for USD under foreign
exchange contract (2014: approximately US$15.2 million).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 14,800,000 shares of the
Company were issued upon exercise of share options.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the collateralised borrowings at the amount of
HK$222.3 million mainly represented the amount of financing obtained
from factoring the Group’s bills receivables amounting to HK$224.0
million.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed approximately 60
employees. The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s
employees are maintained at market level and are reviewed annually
by management. In addition to basic salary, discretionary bonuses,
mandatory pension fund and medical insurance scheme, share options
may also be granted to eligible employees at the discretion of the Board
and are subject to the performance of the individual employees as well
as the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
Director in December 2012 and was further appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in September 2013. Mr. Wu is
responsible for the overall financial and business operations and
management of the Group. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s degree
in education, postgraduate certificate in education management and
postgraduate diploma in education management from The University of
Wolverhampton, United Kingdom. Mr. Wu is also certified as a & #I2
81 #8 2| Bl (Senior China Certified Financial Planner (ChFP)) by Ministry
of Labour and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). He was appointed as the Advisor in Economic Growth of Hebei
Chengde Hi-Rank & Hi-Tech Industries Development Zone (7&1& T /= ¥
Ry EE #5038 1R 475 25 R B ) in 2006. The private company previously
held by him was engaged by entities to provide financial solutions,
business feasibilities and fund raising liaison in the PRC.

Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara, aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director in June 2014 and the chief financial officer of the Company
in August 2014. Ms. Cheng is responsible for the overall financial and
administrative functions and corporate governance of the Group.
Ms. Cheng has over 20 years of professional and senior managerial
experiences in legal compliance, corporate financial planning and
management. Ms. Cheng has been holding senior positions in listed
companies in Hong Kong since 2000. She also worked for First
Shanghai Capital Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Cheng
holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEBEEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Huan Guocang, aged 66, is currently the chief executive officer
of Primus Pacific Partners Limited (“Primus”). Dr. Huan holds master
degrees in arts from the Graduate School of International Studies of the
University of Denver in 1982 and Columbia University in 1983, a PhD
degree from Princeton University in 1987 and John Olin post doctoral
fellow from the Centre for International and Strategic Studies of Harvard
University in 1987. Before the set-up of Primus in 2005, Dr. Huan has
been the Head of Investment Banking (Asia Pacific) of HSBC, the co-
Head of Investment Banking (Asia Pacific) of Citigroup, the managing
director and Head of China of BZW Asia Limited, a senior economist
and vice president of J.P. Morgan, an assistant professor of Columbia
University and an economist of Deutsche Bank. Dr. Huan is currently
the independent non-executive director of Beijing Development (Hong
Kong) Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lo Ka Wai, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in March 2014. Mr. Lo has over 20 years experience
in financial management and corporate finance gained from working
as a chief financial officer and/or a company secretary for various listed
companies in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Lo is an executive director of
National United Resources Holdings Limited and Han Tang International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Pearl River Tyre (Holdings)
Limited”) and an independent non-executive director of Yusei Holdings
Limited, the shares of all of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is also a chief financial officer of a company,
the shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo graduated from the University of Wollongong,
Australia with a bachelor degree in commerce. Mr. Lo is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA
Australia.

Mr. Wu Fred Fong, aged 68 was appointed an independent non-
executive Director in March 2014. Mr. Wu has considerable experience
in auditing, corporate planning, investment, consulting and finance with
public companies in Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Wu holds a master of
business administration degree from The Schulich School of Business,
York University in Canada. Mr. Wu is a chartered accountant qualified
in Canada and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wu has substantial directorship and corporate
governance experience. Currently he is the independent non-executive
director of Minth Group Limited and China Public Procurement Limited,
the shares of both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the interests
of all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.
The Company has complied with the code on corporate governance
practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2015 except
the following deviations:

The Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the role of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Although the Company does not
have a Chairman, all major decisions are made in consultation with the
Board members and the senior management of the Company. There
are three independent non-executive Directors in the Board. The Board
considers that there is sufficient balance of power and the current
arrangement maintains a strong management position of the Company.

Under the Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings. Mr.
Xu Guocai, a non-executive Director who was removed with effect from
8 June 2015, was unable to attend the annual general meeting and the
special general meeting of the Company both held on 22 May 2015 as
he had other business commitments.

Following the retirement of Mr. Qi Wenju, a former independent non-
executive Director, on 22 May 2015, the number of independent non-
executive Directors of the Board fell below the minimum number of
independent non-executive Directors required under Rule 3.10(1) of
the Listing Rules. There was also a vacancy for the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company and the Company no longer
fulfilled the requirements on minimum number of independent non-
executive directors for the formation of audit committee stipulated
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Following the appointment of Dr.
Huan Guocang as an independent non-executive Director, chairman
of the nomination committee and members of the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company on 8 June 2015, the
Company has met the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of
the Listing Rules.

-
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules as
a code of conduct of the Company for directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprised two executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board’s members during the year ended 31
December 2015 and up to the date of this report is as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William (CEO)
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara (CFO)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Guocai (removed on 8 June 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Huan Guocang (appointed on 8 June 2015)
Mr. Lo Ka Wai

Mr. Wu Fred Fong

Mr. Qi Wenju (retired on 22 May 2015)
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, ten Board meetings were REBZ-_T—HF+-_A=+—HILFE "
held. Detail of the Directors’ attendance records were as follows:— HBITTARESZSLH EHESHEFS
HymT o —
Meetings attended/
Name Eligible to attend
HESBEIE
HE SERHEEERRY
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William RS 10/10
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara B2+ 10/10
Non-executive Director EHITEE
Mr. Xu Guocai TREIA 4 0/6
(removed on 8 June 2015) (R=ZF—AFNANNAHRESR)
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Dr. Huan Guocang EREEL 3/3
(appointed on 8 June 2015) (R=ZF—AFNANNHEZE)
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERERE 10/10
Mr. Wu Fred Fong R SE 10/10
Mr. Qi Wenju BB SE 0/5
(retired on 22 May 2015) (R=ZF—AFAHA=—1+=HRF)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, two general meetings were
held. Detail of the Directors’ attendance records were as follows:—

b_/\ﬁ:t— =

—hAFEt-A=+—HLFE"

HEBETMABRKRE - BRAESEHFEABH

IR : —
Meetings attended/
Name Eligible to attend
HESRIE
#E SERHEEERRY
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William AL RELE 0/2
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara BRI 2/2
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Xu Guocai REIA A 0/2
(removed on 8 June 2015) (RZF—AFNANARER)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYEHITES
Dr. Huan Guocang EREEL 0/0
(appointed on 8 June 2015) (R=ZF—AFNANNAEZE)
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ‘ERERE 2/2
Mr. Wu Fred Fong AR T E 2/2
Mr. Qi Wenju KBRS 0/0
(retired on 22 May 2015) (R=ZF—AFAH=1+=HRF)
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The Board is responsible for formulation of the Group’s strategies
and policies, approval of annual budget and business plan, and
supervising the management of day-to-day operation of the Group
to ensure the business objectives are met. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Company. Further details of these committees are
set out in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has reserved for
its decisions all major matters of the Group including:—

1. approval of the resignation and appointment of directors;

2. discussion on and approval of the financial results of the Group
and the recommendation of any dividend;

3. approval on Issuance of convertible notes and warrants;

4. reviewed the interim results of the Group for the period ended 30
June 2015;

5.  approval on the exercise of share options;

6. approval of change in term of reference of the Audit Committee;
and

7. matters as required by laws and ordinance.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged at the expenses of the
Company whenever necessary.

The Directors are committed to complying with the Code provision
A.6.5 on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided their training records for the financial year ended 31
December 2015 to the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has not adopted A.2.1 of the Code by appointing
separate individual to take up the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer. In the absence of a chairman, the executive Directors
will be responsible for the management of the Board and ensure good
corporate governance practices will be implemented.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The non-executive Director is appointed for a specific term subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election as required by the bye-law of the
Company (the “Bye-Law”).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election as required by the
Bye-law.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority
and duties. The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee
include:—

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

2.  to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

3.  toreview and approve performance-based remuneration from time
to time;

-
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B RBERENATESTLRSREERE
ZREEANEARTATEMREXESR
EE2RERE K

4.  to review and approve the compensation payable to executive 4.
Directors and senior management and compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

5. to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in 5. MR MEF L E A (IBEA L2 HE]

deciding his own remuneration. EEARE 25 -
Currently, the members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Wu 38 - HFZEeXERMREE(EF) -
Fred Fong (Chairman), Dr. Huan Guocang and Mr. Lo Ka Wai. During EBEELTRZEREL4E  REEZE=-T—1

Ft-A=1— EIJJ:$F“ FHNEEEE R
REF > TREIIBSKEHFEEH 2B

the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting. The attendance of individual members was set out in the 17—

following table. e
Meetings attended/
Name Eligible to attend
HESBRE
HE EEREESRRH™
Mr. Wu Fred Fong R SE 1/1
Dr. Huan Guocang EEEEL 0/0
(appointed on 8 June 2015) (R=ZF—AFANANNAEZE)
Mr. Lo Ka Wai mRBRE 1/1
Mr. Qi Wenju B ERSE 0/0
(retired on 22 May 2015) (R=ZF—AFAA=+=HRA)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZ8E
The Nomination Committee was established with specific writen ARFRIEKILRZEZEE  WEH]HAEA
terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority and duties. The ’I@Hﬂggﬁl BREFAEBELERE - 184
principal duties of the Nomination Committee include: BEeZTIBREBRE:

W ESEZRE  RERMER - IR
VERAEAEBREEBER W
HEBAEEBRAETEZEEKREZA

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and 1.
make recommendations for changes as necessary, to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become board members and

select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and to
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the Chairman and the CEOQ.
The Nomination Committee should meet at least once a year and
when the need arises.
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2. responsible for identifying, recruiting and evaluating new
nominees to the Board and the assessment of the qualifications
of the directors. The criteria adopted to select and recommend
candidates for directorship includes the candidate’s experience,
professional knowledge, integrity, time commitment and other
statutory or regulatory requirements.

It currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors
namely Dr. Huan Guocang (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ka Wai and Mr. Wu Fred
Fong. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting. The attendance of individual members
was set out in the following table.

2. BEAEEENE  BERTEFER
BAE URFEEEZ AR - REE
BEERMANTE R RS EERRE
A2 BEARREAZER X
£ME - IS R RE AT
REERE -

RERESERKH=2BLIFATES (AIE
BERL(XE) EREEERBRLE)E
KeRBE-_T-—RAF+_A=1t—HILLHF
B REZREEERHRITREHE - TRIAT
EXREHEERZIER

Meetings attended/

Name Eligible to attend
HESRIE
" CEREEERRH
Dr. Huan Guocang HEE L 0/0
(appointed on 8 June 2015) (R=ZF—FFNA/\HEZE)
Mr. Lo Ka Wai BRERE 1/1
Mr. Wu Fred Fong AR 1/1
Mr. Qi Wenju TRCREAE 0/0
(retired on 22 May 2015) (R=ZF—AFAHA=1+=HRF)

During the meetings, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board member.

Prior to the establishment of the nomination committee the role and
function of such a committee are performed by the Board.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the remunerations payable
to the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, are set out as follows:

L REZBERJEFTENEZHEK -
Wm%é,%@;ﬂz Al RBREBEZABK
BEEmEESET -

BB EE &

REBEE-FT-AF+-_A=+T—HLEFE"
ENARRZBMBELEERGFER
FIBRARZMEHFIIAT

Fee paid/payable

e ERER

HK$’000

Services rendered RARS FAETT
Audit services BIZRTE 1,280
Non-audit services LR 465

-
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority and duties. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and review
and monitor their independence and objectivity as well as the
effectiveness of the audit process;

2. to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors, maintain appropriate relationship between the Group and
the external auditors and develop policy on the engagement of the
external auditors to supply non-audit services;

3. to ensure the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements and any significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them; and review the external auditors’
work, including management letter and management’s response;
and

4. to review the Company’s internal control and risk management
systems.

Currently, the members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Lo Ka Wai
(Chairman), Dr. Huan Guocang and Mr. Wu Fred Fong. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee held three meetings
and the attendance of individual members was set out in the following
table.

BEREES
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Meetings attended/

Name Eligible to attend
HESERE
o EEREEERRE
Mr. Lo Ka Wai ERELE 3/3
Dr. Huan Guocang EREELT 1/1
(appointed on 8 June 2015) (RZF—AFNANAEZE)
Mr. Wu Fred Fong HHRE 3/3
Mr. Qi Wenju BB 0/2
(retired on 22 May 2015) (R=ZF—AFAA=+=HRI)
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board had no
disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions, which
include the following duties:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

3.  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

5.  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has discharged the above functions during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Or Wing Keung, the Company Secretary of the Company, is a
full time employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Chief
Executive Officer and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company Secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

A sound and effective internal control system is important for the
Group to safeguard investments of the shareholders and assets of the
Group. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions of the Group.

=
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s report on page 35 to
37 of this annual report. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as at
31 December 2015. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is also
available to shareholders from the Group’s website. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which at least 20
clear business days’ notice is given. The chairman and Directors are
available to answer question on the Group’s businesses at the meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition.
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Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the
resolutions put to vote at the annual general meeting will be taken by
way of poll. The chairman of the annual general meeting will explain the
detailed procedure for conducting a poll at the commencement of the
annual general meeting.

Shareholders who have enquiries to put to the Board may write to the
company secretary of the Company at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Suites 4301-5, 43/F., Tower 1, Times Square, 1
Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries. For the avoidance of
doubt, the shareholder(s) must provide their full name, contact details
and identification in order that the Company can give them a reply.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort to promote
transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions are always welcomed.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to the Bye-
laws. An updated version of the Bye-laws is available on the website of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

=
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The Directors present their report and audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40
to the audited financial statements. Further discussion and analysis of
these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the group and an indication of likely future developments in the group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 4 to 9.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the audited financial
statements on page 38 to 167.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years and the year ended 31 December
2015, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated
as appropriate, is set out on page 168. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
89.6% of the Group’s total turnover and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 57.7% of the Group’s total turnover.
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The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
100% of the Group’s total purchases for the year and the largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 100% of the Group’s total
purchases.

So far as is known to the Directors, other than those disclosed in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors, their
associates or substantial shareholders (which to the best knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the share capital of the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 September 2004
(the “2004 Scheme”). Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 15 October 2014, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2014 Scheme”),
the purpose of which is to enable the Group to grant share options to
the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group. Particulars of the 2004 Scheme and the 2014 Scheme
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. No
further option shall be granted under the 2004 Scheme but the options
granted under the 2004 Scheme prior to its expiry shall remain valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the respective grants.
No share option has been granted under the 2014 Scheme and the
movements of the share options granted under the 2004 Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2015 were as follows:
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Outstanding at Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
Grantee Date of grant Exercise price Vesting period Exercisable period 1January2015  duringtheyear  during the year 31 December 2015
RZB-1% RZB-1%
-B-H tZR=t-H
ERA RiAH %8 BRA &8 AT RERBAR RERBAR AT
Directors
B2
Mr. Wu SiuLam, Willam ~ 24/7/2013 0.1825 Ni 24/7/2013-24/7/2016 20,000,000 (10,000,000 - 10,000,000
HIREE ZE-CELACTER 018 £ Z2-ZELACTMAE
ZT-FEAZTEA
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara~ 20/6/2014 0.2450 Ni 20/6/2014-20/6/2017 12,000,000 (4,000,000 - 8,000,000
Baiunt ZZ-MERAZTR 0.2450 £ Z5-MErAZTHE
“E-tERAZTH
Mr. Xu Guocal (Note) 20/6/2014 0.2450 Ni 20/6/2014-20/6/2017 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) -
REA %A (st Z5-PERAZTH 02450 i Z3-PERAZTHE
3Rzt
Mr. Lo Ka Wai 20/6/2014 0.2450 Ni 20/6/2014-20/6/2017 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
ERfEAE Z2-mERAZTA 0.2450 £ ZE-RERAZTAE
S
Mr. Wu Fred Fong 20/6/2014 0.2450 Ni 20/6/2014-20/6/2017 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
ikt Z5-WERAZTH 02450 E ZZ-RESACTEE
ZZ-t55AZ1A
Employees in aggregate ~ 25/8/2011 0.2800 Ni 25/8/2011-25/8/2021 8,480,000 - (8,000,000) 480,000
-G ZE—F/\AZTER 02800 & “2—£\ATRBEE
B —%/\A_TA
25/8/2011 0.2800 25/8/2011-24/8/2012 25/8/2012-25/8/2021 12,720,000 - (12,000,000 720,000
Z5—%N\AZtER 02800 “5——%\B-tRAZ -F-—FN\A-tEAZ
Z2-Z¥\AZTRE  ZB--%/\AZTIA
24072013 0,182 Ni 24/7/2013-2417/2016 30,800,000 (800,000 - 30,000,000
ZT-ZELACTEA 0185 i ZR-ZELACTRAE
I S o e ]
20/6/2014 0.2450 Ni 20/6/2014-20/6/2017 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
“Z-RERAZTR 0.2450 & ZZ-RERAZTHE
S e
Other grantees 24072013 01825 Ni 24/7/2013-2417/2016 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
EHERA ZE-CEEAZTRER 0185 & Z5-=FtAZTMAE
ZE-FEAZ 1A
160,000,000 (14,800,000 (22,000,000 113,200,000
Total number of shares available for issue at year end date 150,000,000 118,200,000
REFEEERTETRAEY
Total number of shares available for issue as a percentage to issued shares 4.32% 3.25%

TEAIRNEHECRIRN AN

Note: Mr. Xu Guocai was removed as a non-executive Director on 8 June 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in notes 15 to the audited financial

statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2015 no reserves are available for distribution to
shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR’S SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. Xu Guocai (removed on 8 June 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. Huan Guocang (appointed on 8 June 2015)
Mr. Lo Ka Wai

Mr. Wu Fred Fong

Mr. Qi Wenju (retired on 22 May 2015)

In accordance with Article 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr. Huan
Guocang was appointed as Director by the Board to fill the casual
vacancies, will hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lo Ka
Wai and Mr. Wu Fred Fong will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offers themselves for re-election.

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting do not have a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of a compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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The non-executive Directors have been appointed for a specific term
subject to retirement by rotation as required by the Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares capital and underlying
shares and convertible bonds of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.05 EACH OF THE
COMPANY

FRTEFTEZEHEEY  YAREAF]
AR MERESE

EERERGHzER

ARBHETAHEBRRBETIRAFE
EERARHE T RAF+_A=+—81
FERNEMEBDABR  BESEREFE
EHEREEAERCEREN -

EEER

RZZE—RAF+A=+—H EERERQ
AERTHRABRARAIREBEEE (E&
RErm MGG (1775 MR RG] ]) EXV
#8) 2 R FERR G R AR E SR REE YL
ERENA R ARER 5 K B E 1555 352
BRATHFEZERMZBEIIAR  BRE
EMBETAZESTETEFRRHHITESTR
ARITHE AR A KB 32 P 2 #e5 KOR B 4R

-

RAERTRNSREEIGETZEERZ
3}
Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of Directors Capacity Number of shares held of the Company
HARAE

EEHE 54 FEBEROEE BRITRABE DL

Mr. Wu Siu Lam,William Beneficial owner 7,305,354 0.21%

HHDRAEE EmEEA

Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara Beneficial owner 500,000 0.01%

RO E BEnEAA
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LONG POSITION — SHARE OPTIONS

HR-BRE

Number of
underlying shares

Name of Directors Capacity Number of options held of the Company
EEpR 14 FrEBRER B AAREBARGHE
Mr. Wu Siu Lam,William Beneficial owner 10,000,000 10,000,000
HOREE EnEEA
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara Beneficial owner 8,000,000 8,000,000
g2 0+ EnEEA
Mr. Lo Ka Wai Beneficial owner 2,000,000 2,000,000
ERIBRE EnEEA
Mr. Wu Fred Fong Beneficial owner 2,000,000 2,000,000
AR E EnEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the M EXFAEEEIN RZT—HF+ A

Directors or chief executive of the Company had registered an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or convertible bonds
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate and none of their spouses or children under the age of
18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FTERRRER

As at 31 December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders R-ZE—HF+-A=+—H  REAXQF]
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO EBRFHFMBEKRFIFEI6HRTFTECETER
shows that, other than interest disclosed above in respect of certain  REGMAIR - R EXFIREEEE TES
Directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had notified REZITHRABE#EE 2= - TIIRR
the Company of their relevant interests in the shares, underlying shares E X & AR AEERAR A FRG - HEARD
and convertible bonds of the Company. Rk ES 2 AR -

LONG POSITION — ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.05 EACH OF THE # = - A X A& R E{E0.05% T 2

COMPANY ZER
Percentage of the
issued share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity Number of shares held of the Company
(ERNE
REREB 514 FRsERMEE ERITRABESE
King Lion Group Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,011,000,000 29.00%
King Lion Group Limited (fiiz¥1) Em#EAA
Mr. Lu Xing (Note 2) Interest of corporation 420,000,000 12.05%
BRITHRAE (H3E2) controlled
RiE L EEw
Redhead Investments Beneficial owner 300,000,000 8.60%
Limited (Note 2) EmEA A
Redhead Investments
Limited (FfizE2)
Front Riches Investments Beneficial owner 410,309,600 11.77%
Limited (Note 3) EREBAA

MERERRAR (HES)
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Notes:

(1) King Lion Group Limited is wholly owned by Smart Chant Limited which in
turn is wholly owned by Mr. Gao Yongzhi.

(2) Redhead Investments Limited, Ascher Group Limited and Headwind
Holdings Limited, all are wholly-owned by Mr. Lu Xing, beneficially owns
300,000,000 shares, 100,000,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares of the
Company respectively.

(8)  Front Riches Investments Limited is a corporation controlled by Mr. Hu
Yishi.

Other than the interests disclosed above, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO discloses no other person as having a notifiable interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and convertible bonds of
the Company as at 31 December 2015.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has not entered into any other connected transaction or
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2015 which should be disclosed pursuant to the requirement of Chapter
14A to the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out in pages 12 to
22 of this report.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS
EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the valuable assets of the Group and the Group
regards the personal development of its employees as highly important.
The Group aims to continue to be an attractive employer for committed
employees and strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement of their skills.
The Group provides on-the-job training and development opportunities
to its employees and considers all valuable feedback from its employees
for enhancing workplace productivity and harmony.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to its employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The emolument
policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The customers and suppliers of the Group are independent third parties
to the Group. The Group is committed to maintain good relationships
with its customers and suppliers in the long run by adopting various
means to strengthen communication channels with them. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its customers and suppliers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed above, the
convertible bonds as disclosed in note 27 and share options granted
to a consultant as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2015 or subsisted at the
end of the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of the assets of the
Company against all costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she may sustain or incur or about the execution and discharge
of his duties or in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Company during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise its environmental impact by saving
electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the subsidiaries of the
Company in Hong Kong and the PRC while the shares of Company (the
“Shares”) are listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s establishment
and operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, the PRC and the respective place of incorporation of the
Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, the Company is required to
comply with the Listing Rules and SFO.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that
has a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process, financial control, risk management and internal controls
systems. The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee comprises three members namely Mr. Lo Ka Wai (Chairman),
Dr. Huan Guocang and Mr. Wu Fred Fong. All of them are independent
non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has been set up with written term of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Mr. Wu Fred Fong (Chairman), Dr. Huan Guocang and
Mr. Lo Ka Wai.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has been set up with written term of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Dr. Huan Guocang (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ka Wai and Mr.
Wu Fred Fong.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEGREE

AUDITOR

On 21 January 2015, BDO Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”).

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditor of the
Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2015 were audited by BDO Limited and the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 were audited by Deloitte. A resolution will be submitted to the
annual general meeting to re-appoint BDO Limited as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wu Siu Lam, William
Executive Director

11 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZBE RS

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE 1 +85222188288
+852 2815 2239

BH:

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
BETHER115E
JKRHI251E

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheng Yuan
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 38 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

BDO Limited
BRI EREEHAEBAARAR
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BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZBE RS

IBDO

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position is interest in
an associate, Xinhua (Daging) Merchandise Exchange Company Limited
(“XHME”), of approximately HK$92,025,000 and HK$73,945,000 as at
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015, respectively. As stated in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, XHME was acquired
during the year ended 31 December 2014 and the Group applies equity
method to account for its interest in XHME. Included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is the
Group’s share of loss of XHME for the year ended 31 December 2014
and year ended 31 December 2015 of approximately HK$1,145,000
and HK$14,151,000, respectively and exchange differences on
translating the financial statements of XHME for the year ended
31 December 2014 and year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
HK$394,000 and HK$3,929,000, respectively.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY ZBE RS

IBDO

During the course of our audit, we had not been given access by the
local management of XHME to the books and records and to obtain
other information of XHME that we considered necessary in order to
satisfy ourselves as to whether the Group’s share of XHME’s loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the carrying amount as included in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015 were fairly
stated and whether the information of XHME as shown in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements was properly disclosed. There were
no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence in this regard. Consequently, we
were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts
were necessary. Our opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 was also qualified on
the same basis.

QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chiu Wing Cheung Ringo
Practising Certificate No.: P04434

Hong Kong, 11 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEBEEkEMZEIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

2015 2014
—E-1F —E-lF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE FET FH&T
Revenue Weas 6 405,678 414,588
Other gains and losses B b heas K BB 7 46,919 (5,449)
Other income PN 8 1,756 35
Purchase of inventories for trading MEIEBEBERE
business (224,074) (349,007)
Staff costs BIMRA 10 (161,523) (35,512)
Depreciation ree (1,036) (1,072)
Finance costs ELE= VDN 9 (34,936) (5,080)
Other expenses Hih & (50,374) (19,997)
Share of results of associates DREE AR EE (14,140) (1,156)
Loss before income tax BRETBRAIEE 10 (31,730) (2,650)
Income tax expense FriS B2 11 (2,668) (2,379)
Loss for the year FRER (34,398) (5,029)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2wk
ltem that may be reclassified HgrnEHoEE
subsequently to profit or loss BxmHE
— Exchange differences on translation - MEBINERE I Bk
of financial statements of foreign EEZIER =5
operations (4,491) (365)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year (4,491) (365)
Total comprehensive income FREZEWNSRLEEE
for the year (38,889) (5,394)

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEsakAMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

2015 2014
—E-hfF —E-HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET FET
Loss for the year attributable to: T &EEMFRNESS :
— Owners of the Company - VNEIE 2PN (34,385) (5,040)
— Non-controlling interests - FEIERR i (13) 11
(34,398) (5,029)
Total comprehensive income UTEEEMFER
for the year attributable to: EHRESEE
— Owners of the Company - RAFHER A (38,876) (5,405)
— Non-controlling interests - FEIE N A (13) N
(38,889) (5,394)
HK cent HK cent
4l P
Loss per share BRER 13
— Basic _EA (0.99) (0.15)
_ Diluted — (0.99) 0.28)

“ER-REFHR BRERBRIA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BARR R

As at 31 December 2015
RZE—RAF+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—OF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FIREBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN S 15 1,046 1,961
Trading rights EE# 16 3,322 3,322
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 17 - 100
Interests in associates REEE N R Z s 18 73,945 92,092
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTE 22 3,667 1,481
Other assets Hib&E 19 1,730 1,730
83,710 100,686
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables 25 kEA IR
and prepayments AR FE 5RIE 20 291,230 249,952
Held for trading investments BHIEEER®RIEE 21 184,304 71,958
Current tax assets BNEARHIR & = - 156
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMT A 22 - 640
Trust bank balances held on behalf REBEFES
of clients ZIEFERITHEER 23 51,381 10,542
Cash and cash equivalents Be MR&ERER 24 60,536 94,467
587,451 427,715
Current liabilities REEaE
Trade and other payables and accruals 2 5 R E M ERTRRFR
LAK & A 25 117,030 22,717
Borrowings BE 26 222 314 154,924
Obligations under finance leases B &M A - 32
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMT A 22 - 203
Current tax liabilities BNEATIE & (& 5,067 2,399
344,411 180,275
Net current assets REBEEFE 243,040 247,440
Total assets less current liabilities BREERABER 326,750 348,126
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S 27 148,462 133,900
148,462 133,900
Net assets EEFE 178,288 214,226
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BARR R

As at 31 December 2015
RZZE—RAF+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
= —FmF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET T
EQUITY xR

Share capital fi&Ax 28 174,328 173,588
Reserves e 31 (13,842) 22,823

Equity attributable to owners KATHEE ABIEER
of the Company 160,486 196,411
Non-controlling interests eI IR S 17,802 17,815
Total equity g 178,288 214,206

On behalf of the Board REEFS

Wu Siu Lam, William
DR
Director

EZ

Cheng Kit Sum, Clara

BRI
Director

EE

“ER-REFHR BRERBRIA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—RF+_A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ARAREARR FEREE
Share of ~ Convertible
Capital ~ Convertible ~ Contingent Share  Currency net bond equity
Share Share Shareholder's  redemption bond equity consideration option translation Accumulated assetsof  reserve of Total
capital  premium* contribution*  reserve*  reserve*  reseve*  reserve*  reserve* losses* Total subsidiaries a subsidiary Total equity
-HHE
M 2z
HAHE  TEREE  GARE BRE  EBEE WEAT  TRRES
By RftEEr RRIE BE  EEGRH B B fE  2tEE &t BERE  BHGR &t BRSE
HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR T ThL TR TR v TR v T ThL TR TR ThL TR
|
At1 January 2014 R=F-ME-B-B 161,201 174,173 7834 47 - - 16,233 (4] (289,463 70548 - - - 70548
Issue of shares Upon exercise of share options - RERIEEGEMZ ARG 40 1,904 - - - - (685) - - 1679 - - - 1679
Issue of convertile bonds by a subsidary —ARBARETARES - - - - - - - - - - - 1779 17792 1779
Issue of converile bonds by the Company ~~ ARARATARES - - - - 34,408 - - - - 34,408 - - - 34,408
Acquiston of a subsiciary LR 197 50093 - - - 2B.M3 - - - 90,963 12 - 12 90975
Equity-settled share-based payment BAEERA - - - - - - 4218 - - 4218 - - - 4218
Transactions with owners FEALRS 12387 51997 - - 38 B3 3583 - - 131268 12 1779 7804 14907
Loss forthe year ERER = - - - - - - - (5,040) (5,040) 1l - 1l (509
Other comprehensive income EfprENE
- Exchange diferences on transaton of -HEBERER AR
financial statements of foreign operations EEERZE - - - - - - - (369) - (365) - - - (369)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ER2ERHEE - - - - - - - (369) (5,040) 5406) 1l - 1 5,394
Forfeiture of share options RUBRRE - - - - o o 7074 o 7074 = o o o =
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-BE+ZA=t-8 173588 206,170 7,834 4 34,408 28943 12,692 [212) (287,429 196,411 2 17,7192 17816 214226
At1 January 2015 R-Z-1%-5-B 173,588 226,170 7,834 41 34,408 28943 12,692 @) (87429) 196,411 2 17,192 17815 214,226
Issue of shares Upon exercise of share options - REREEEAEMZARA 40 3,204 - - - - (1,083) - - 2951 - - - 2951
Transactions with owners HREAZRS 40 3,204 - - - - (1,083) - - 2951 - - - 2951
Loss forthe year EREE - - - - - - - - (3 (34389 (13 - (18 (3430
Other comprehensive income AfprENE
- Exchange diferences on translaton of - BEB SRR RR
financal statements of foreign aperations EECENZE - - - - - - - (4491) - (4491) - - - (4491)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FARERHLE - - - - - - - (4d91) (34385 (38876) 13) - 13 (36809)
Transfer to accumulated losses BRERHFR - - - - - B - - 28,043 - - - - -
Forfeiture of share options RuBRE - - - - - - (8,142) - 3142 - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 R-E-B§+-A=1-A 174,328 200,464 78%4 41 34,408 - 8,467 (4763 (289,729) 160,486 10 17,192 17,802 178,288

—
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These accounts comprise the negative reserves of HK$13,842,000 (2014
reserves of HK$22,823,000) in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 December 2015.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—Z—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE-mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BEE FExT FH&TT
Cash flows from operating activities K& ZEFMERESHRE
Loss for the year FAEE (34,398) (5,029)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Income tax expense FriS i > 2,668 2,379
Changes in net assets attributable to FEREESED
other holders of redeemable shares IRz HRsE A
of a consolidated investment fund JEIhEEFEE 2,811 =
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB NEE
equipment e 1,036 1,072
Dividend income =N ON (1,714) =
Equity-settled share-based payment RAEER DR AZ
expense - 4,218
Fair value changes on financial SREAKEEESRIA
instruments classified as held for ZAFEED)
trading (1,749) (17)
Finance costs BEKA 34,936 5,080
Interest income from banks and others RITREMF BUA (41) (13)
Net losses on disposals of property, HEDE -« BB NERE
plant and equipment ZEEFERE 3 285
Share of results of associates DIREE N RIFLE 14,140 1,156
Operating profit before working capital EBESEBA
changes R 17,692 9,131
Increase in other assets H {th & E= A0 - (29)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N E M EUER A K
and prepayments TR FRIBIE AN (41,612 (203,786)
Increase in held for trading investments ~ #1EE & R E N (112,346) (71,958)
Increase in trust bank balances held REZPRA ZEFRT
on behalf of clients AEERIE N (40,839) (3,371)
Increase in trade and other payables H 5 R EAM ERTBR KA K&
and accruals FEETE R38N 79,502 2,174
Cash used in operations LEFTRAE® (97,603) (267,835)
Dividend received 2 U B 1,714 =
Interest paid ERHE (10,814) (881)
Interest received from banks and others B HER1T R E M F| 8 41 13
Income tax refunded/(paid) BiRE (B FrEH 156 372)
Net cash used in operating activities AT 2 F R (106,506) (269,075)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—RILtEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —Z—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PEE FET FAT
Cash flows from investing activites REZEFERESHE
Acquisition of assets and liabilities FHiRE—RNE AR
through acquisition of a subsidiary HEEEENAR
(net of cash and cash equivalents (FnprU g 2R e
acquired) MREZRIEE) 30 - 339
Transaction costs paid on acquisition WiE—ER B AR BN
of a subsidiary R 30 - (1,194)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWHE - BEMEE
equipment (133) (334)
Proceeds from disposal/(subscription) HE,/ (REE) AT E
of shares in an available-for-sale TxéHxTﬁZﬁfr?Eﬁy’(
investment 100 (100)
Proceeds from disposal/(subscription) HE,/ (REE) & QA
of shares in associates B85 2 TS 5kIE 78 (78)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZB TS (FTHE)
investing activities B FEE 45 (1,367)
Cash flows from financing activities @EEZEFERLSRE
Increase in collateralised borrowings IS E LN 57,830 154,924
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 277 R[ #i& (E5% 2 FT{S 7UE - 180,000
Proceeds from issue of shares upon R B AR e JE T T8 T B2 1 TAR (D
exercise of share options 2 FTSF0E 2,951 1,679
Proceeds from issue of redeemable shares 2174 &R E R & Al B RIRZD
of a consolidated investment fund Z PS50 12,000 =
Repayment of loan from a shareholder BE—BRREIER - (30,000)
Repayment of obligations under finance &% gt & FH#)AE
leases (32) (38)
Net cash generated from financing BETE T % FRE
activities 72,749 306,565
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬂlﬁ B
and cash equivalents WD), InFEE (33,712) 36,123
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning b’/\i%ﬂziﬁi&
of the year IEA** [IEE 94,467 58,485
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, — [& R & &) i
on cash held fﬁﬁz%‘a (219) (141)
Cash and cash equivalents at end RERZEER
of the year REZLRER 24 60,536 94,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated and domiciled in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place
of business is Suites 4301-5, 43/F., Tower 1, Times Square, 1
Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in trading business, provision of securities
brokerage and financial services, asset management services and
proprietary trading business.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 11 March 2016.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL
PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2015

In the current year, the Group has applied the new standards,
amendments and interpretations which are effective for the
Group’s financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 January 2015. HKFRSs include all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs has
no material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

—REHR
BRERBERAR(ARRALD BR—E
RBREFMR L RELRZEREER
ANF] o EFEiEE & # ik A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda * HFX 2L XM EHURE
EIRRE N EH 1R ES 1 43
1 4301- 5% - AR BEIROREBHE
REMBR AR ([BAZAT]) £ -

RABRIREERAT  HNBAR X
ERFEZIES  RUBFELCAER
R BEEERBREEEER

BE-F-AF+-A=+—ALEE
ZRAHEREN =B —AF=AT—
A FEHETIE -

R RRIEFT BB UK RS

A ([BFRAMBREER )

21 RZE—HFE—F—HIHZ#&
A FEIBE R FETH
BT EBUKHREER
RAEER @ NEBRRANR-Z
—FHFE—A— BB FEBREY
RE BB SRR AR FER - &
SRR o EAUBMEERE
EBEGHMAG([FESHAA
& |) |5 FEERERE S
WEEL - B ER([HEe
LR ) BB o NS S
SEAVBREENTEHAEE
TS RREEERTE o

“ER-REFHR BRERARIA

v



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new or amended HKFRSs have been issued but are
not yet effective. The Group has not early adopted these new
or amended HKFRSs in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The directors of the Company
anticipate that these pronouncements will be adopted in the
Group’s accounting policies for the first period beginning
after the effective date of the pronouncement.

Information on new or amended HKFRSs that have not been
adopted early by the Group but expected to have impact
on the Group’s accounting policies is provided below. Other
new or amended HKFRSs have been issued but are not yet
effective and not adopted in advance are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1, DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE

Amendments to HKAS 1 will be effective for accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to encourage
entities to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1
when considering the layout and content of their financial
statements. In addition, an amendment is made to HKAS
1 to clarify the presentation of an entity’s share of other
comprehensive income from its equity accounted interests
in associates and joint ventures. The amendment requires
an entity’s share of other comprehensive income to be split
between those items that will and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss, and presented in aggregate as single line items
within those two groups.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014), FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Under
HKFRS 9 (2014), all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of the subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair value through profit or loss at the
end of the subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014), FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
(2014) requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of financial liability that is attributable to change in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as at fair value through profit
or loss is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
(2014) requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014), FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9 (2014), greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transaction
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and
the types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principal of
an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s management
activities have also been introduced.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will be effective for accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9
(2014) in the future may have a material impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 (2014) until the
Group undertakes a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2

NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 15, REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

HKFRS 15 was issued which established a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 15 will be effective for accounting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future
may have a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements on pages 38 to 167 have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or amended HKFRSs and the impact on the Group’s
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2 to the
financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amount of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
(Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
exchange for the acquiree includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with any resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss or in other comprehensive income.

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued
by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.

SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it
has power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights relating to the investee (held by the Group
and others) are considered. For a right to be substantive, the
Group must have the practical ability to exercise that right.
Control is reassessed when facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.
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e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

3.4

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so
that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in
deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting
rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant
activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements.
Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, the investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amounts are adjusted for the post-
acquisition change in the Group’s share of net assets and
any impairment losses relating to the investment. The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees, including any impairment losses on the
investments in associates for the year, are recognised in
the consolidated profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income of the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

—
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 ASSOCIATES (Continueqd) 34 BENT(E)

On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in the consolidated
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associates.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are immediately recognised in
profit or loss.

Where the associate uses accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group when
the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group in
applying the equity method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

—

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company. All value are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
foreign exchange rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into HK$ at the closing rate at the reporting
date. Income and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
currency translation reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

3.6

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation involving loss of control
over a subsidiary or significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation accumulated in
currency translation reserve are reclassified from equity to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods, the rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest and dividend. Revenue is recognised, when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ for commission and brokerage income, they are
recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant
contracts are executed;

(b)  for financial advisory and consultancy fee income; fund
and portfolio management and investment advisory fee
income; and handling fee income, they are recognised
when the services are provided;

(c) for fund and portfolio performance and incentive fee
income, they are recognised on the performance
and incentive fee valuation day when there is a
positive performance for the relevant performance
period, taking into consideration the relevant basis
of calculation for the relevant investment funds and
portfolios;

(d) for trading of goods and products, it is recognised
when the goods and products are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods and the products;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.6

3.7

3.8

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(e) for underwriting and placing commission income, they
are recognised when the obligations and terms under
the agreement have been fulfilled;

()  for interest income, it is recognised on time-proportion
basis taking into account the principal outstanding and
effective interest rate applicable; and

(@ for dividend income, it is recognised when the right to
receive the dividend is established.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

TRADING RIGHTS

Trading rights represent the eligibility rights to trade on or
through Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and the
Stock Exchange. Trading rights acquired separately are
measured initially at cost. The cost of trading rights acquired
in a business combination is its fair value at the acquisition
date. After initial recognition, trading rights with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The useful life of trading rights that is
indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful
life assessment.

—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 39 M - BMERRE

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss of the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their
estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, as follows:

Over the lease terms
15%-20%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ estimated residual value, depreciation method
and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.10 LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS LESSEE UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments of such assets. The corresponding liabilities to the
lessor are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as obligations under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance lease
corresponds to those applied to comparable acquired
assets. The corresponding finance lease liability is reduced
by lease payments less finance charges. Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period.

THE GROUP AS LESSEE UNDER OPERATING LEASE

Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
over the lease terms as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.

—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS

3 E@MTA
(A) ZHEE

Financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets under a contract whose terms that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when, and
only when, the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement. On derecognition of a financial
asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount of assets derecognised and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under (i)
loans and receivables; (i) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss; and (iii) available-for-sale financial
assets. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date. Financial assets
are classified as current assets if they are expected to
be settled within 12 months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any impairment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling it in the near term,
or on initial recognition, they are part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value gain or loss
does not include any dividend or interest earned on
these financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that do not qualify for inclusion in any of
other category of financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each reporting date.

—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 311 €ERTE (%)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) A) THEE &)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

(i)  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

(i)  a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

(i) it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(iv) granting concession to a debtor because of the
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

(v)  a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

—

(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost
has been incurred, the amount of impairment losses
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial assets. The amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
financial period in which the impairment occurs. Such
impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent
periods.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or
loss of the financial period in which the impairment
occurs. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss on loans and receivables decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of
the financial period in which the reversal occurs.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015

3.

TEETEEME @)

3N EMIAE)

A)

EHEE (&)
EHEENE (F)

A F B E BB REKAT
ReAfthEeREECE
ERERE BREEBES
BMREERmERRBAUS
BMEERTMSOHERFTH
ZEFARRBAEREZRE
Mz Z/t8 - BEeER
WIEELE M B HEZ B
HHER o OB EBER EEK
HEA g &mE -

HAEEBZERRERNE
WEREELREREE - Al
EFEReBREEREEER
TREECRERNETER
ZEFARKEREERE (T ER
HMAREEZ RAREEER) 2
REZERTE - BESHE
RBEEL 2 MR 2B
3R o W BRI
ER R KRR 2 REREE
SRRL BRI RE L8
MEERRARELEZENE
B - ALBERER ZRERIE
BTARD - HERDTERE
TREEZREEBBRR
B R[] B 5 fis K e SRR (B B
ZHEHRN - B BN E
ELPHHR 2 1B iR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

3.

TEETEEME @)

3N EMIAE)

(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) A) THEE &)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EEEE R E ()

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced BEBR &R & R AR SRAN 2 PR
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets EEMEENS  eMEE
with the exception of loans and receivables. Where I RABEEERREBET
the recovery of loans and receivables is considered LA A o sl B 3% K 8 M BR 3R
doubtful but not remote, the impairment losses are WR BB I BB FETREW
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group M- APRESESEREE
considered that recovery of receivables is remote, the RIAR - EXREERAETK
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against A] B W (2] i U BR SR - B
the receivables directly and any amounts held in the REBIUIRE 2B E
allowance account in respect of that receivable are ¥ B BRSO - MR 5
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously HBERAREBERKERES
charged to the allowance account are reversed against ZAEMREFEE T LARE - B
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance B EBET B RERNR
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts CRRINBRERER - #E
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or ARz AL fth B 8 [ H 1&g Ua ol 38
loss. TEEME BN ER

PRER o
(B) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (B) 2HEE

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs. When financial
liabilities are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value, less, in the case of financial liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only
when, the obligation under the financial liabilities is
discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as derecognition of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified
under (i) financial liabilities at amortised cost and (ii)
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Management determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months from
the reporting date.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using effective interest
method.

—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B)

©)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term, or on initial recognition, they are part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value gain or loss
does not include any interest paid on these financial
liabilities.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the host liability component, conversion
option component and other embedded derivatives
components (such as early redemption option) which
are not closely related to the host liability component
are classified separately into their respective items on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(C) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Conversion option that will be settled by the issuer
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments
is classified as an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the issuer other than exchanging
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of its own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative. Derivatives embedded
in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives if their economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contract are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability, derivative
and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability component and are amortised over the
period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity.

Convertible bonds (convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company) containing liability and equity
components and multiple embedded derivatives

Multiple embedded derivatives are generally treated
as a single compound derivative. At the date of issue,
both the liability and compound derivative components
are recognised at fair value. The equity component is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability and
compound derivative components from the proceeds
on issuing of the convertible bonds and is included in
convertible bond equity reserve within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 311 €ERTE (%)
(C) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) (C) AR ES (&)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The compound
derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The
equity component will remain in convertible bond
equity reserve until the conversion option is exercised
(in which case the amount included in convertible
bond equity reserve, the fair value of the embedded
derivative component and the carrying value of the
liability component at the time of conversion are
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares of the Company issued).
Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the expiry dates, the balance stated in convertible
bond equity reserve will be released to the retained
profits/accumulated losses and the difference between
the redemption amount and the carrying amounts of
the liability and the embedded derivative components
is recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds (convertible into ordinary shares
of subsidiaries) containing liability and equity
components

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds on issuing of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the option for the
holder to convert the bonds into ordinary shares of the
subsidiary, is included in non-controlling interests within
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

©)

(D)

(E)

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the bonds into
ordinary shares of the subsidiary, will remain in non-
controlling interests. When the conversion option is
exercised, the carrying value of the liability component
at the time of conversion is transferred to the non-
controlling interests as consideration for the shares of
the subsidiary issued. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance
stated in the non-controlling interests will be released
to the retained profits/accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised upon conversion or expiration of the
option.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when,
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES 3.12 FIBH T RE

Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit
or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Current tax and changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if, (a) the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and (b) intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if, (a) the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either (i) the same taxable entity; or (ii)
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

3.13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3.14 EERH
RETIREMENT BENEFITS BIKIEF

The Group participates in staff retirement benefit schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), comprising a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) and a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administered
funds. The retirement benefit schemes are generally funded
by payments from employees and the relevant group
companies. The retirement benefit scheme costs charged to
profit or loss represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes.

The Group contributes to the MPF Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s
employer contributions vested fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to
participate in the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme for their employees, organised by the relevant
local government authorities. They are required to make
contributions to the retirement benefit scheme at a specified
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and there are
no other further obligations to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the reporting date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following year.
An accrual is made at the reporting date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

3.15 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
share options is ultimately recognised as an expense in
profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions
apply, or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within equity.

If service or non-market performance vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market performance and
service conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of share options that are expected to vest. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of share options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEEBE®)

POLICIES (Continued)

3.15 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 3.15 RBER(2)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO
EMPLOYEES

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
share options are measured at their fair value. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO
NON-EMPLOYEES

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
services received, except that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case the fair value are measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the Group received the services.

3.16 IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS

Trading rights with an indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment at least annually and whenever there is any
indication that they may be impaired. Property, plant
and equipment and interests in associates are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the asset’s
carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.16 IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs of disposal, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets or group of assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. cash-generating
unit, “CGU”). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at CGU level. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset,
or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment loss recognised for CGUs is charged
pro rata to the assets in the CGUs, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal, if measurable; and value-in-use,
if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there is any indication
that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods may
no longer exist or may have decreased, there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of the asset or the CGUs and only to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset or the CGUs
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no
impairment loss been recognised. Reversal of impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.17 RELATED PARTIES

)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

M

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEEHBE®)

—

POLICIES (Continued)

3.17 RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include (a)
that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (b)
children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. In addition to information
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period and assumptions that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s policy for impairment of trade and other receivables
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables based on, among others factors,
the current creditworthiness, the collateral security and the
past collection history of each debtor. Management reviews the
impairment of receivables on a regular basis.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
TRADING RIGHTS AND INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

At each reporting date, the Company reviews internal and
external sources of information to identify indications that any of
the property, plant and equipment, trading rights and interests
in associates may be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased. The sources
utilised to identify indications of impairment are often subjective
in nature and the directors of the Company are required to use
judgement in applying such information to its business. Their
interpretation of such information has a direct impact on whether
an impairment assessment is performed as at any given reporting
date.

If an indication of impairment is identified, such information
is further subjected to an exercise that requires the Group to
estimate the recoverable amount. Depending on the assessment
of the overall materiality of the asset under review and complexity
of deriving reasonable estimates of the recoverable amount, the
Group may perform such assessment utilising internal resources
or may engage external advisers in making this assessment.

Regardless of the resources utilised, the Group is required to make
many assumptions in this assessment, including the utilisation of
such asset, the cash flows to be generated, appropriate market
discount rates and the projected market and regulatory conditions.
Changes in any of these assumptions could result in a material
change to future estimates of the recoverable amount of these
assets.
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4.

—

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(Continued)
CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is mainly subjected to income tax in Hong Kong and
in the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision and the timing of payment. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
expense is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the likely outcome
with reference to current tax laws and practices. Where the final
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
originally estimated, such differences will impact the provision
for income tax and deferred tax in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary
differences and tax losses will be recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax expense in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT EXPENSE

The Group granted share options for goods and services. The
cost of these equity-settled share-based payments is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted, using assumptions including expected volatility and
risk-free interest rate. Such cost is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
vesting conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled share-based payment transaction at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS AND VALUATION PROCESS

Some of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (including held for trading investments,
derivative financial instruments and derivative component of
convertible bonds), the Group uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. Where quoted prices in an active market
are not available, the Group may engage third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. At the end of each reporting
period, management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. Discussion of the valuation process and
results with the chief financial officer and the audit committee is
held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates. Detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in note 36 to these
financial statements.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, apart from those
involving estimates. The judgements that have been made and
can significantly affect the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are discussed below:
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4.

—

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

DETERMINATION OF CONTROL OVER AN INVESTMENT
FUND

Management applies its judgement to determine whether the
control indicators set out in note 3.3 indicate that the Group
controls an investment fund.

The Group acts as investment manager to some investment funds.
Determining whether the Group controls such an investment fund
usually focuses on the assessment of the aggregate economic
interests of the Group in the fund (comprising any carried interests
and expected management fees) and the rights held by others to
remove the Group as investment manager. For funds managed by
the Group, the independent board of directors of these funds is
able to remove the Group as investment manager without a cause,
even if the Group’s aggregate economic interests could be more
than 50%. As a result, the Group has concluded that it acts as
agent for the investors, and therefore has not consolidated these
investment funds. Further details in respect of the unconsolidated
investment funds in which the Group had an interest are disclosed
in note 21 to these financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

DETERMINATION OF CONTROL OVER AN INVESTMENT
FUND (Continued)

The Group also invested in other investment funds which are
managed by unrelated investment managers. The objectives of
these investment funds range from achieving medium to long
term capital growth and the investment managers will apply
various investment strategies to accomplish those objectives.
The funds finance their operations by issuing redeemable shares
which are puttable at the holder’s option and entitle the holder
to a proportional stake in the respective fund’s net assets. The
Group holds redeemable shares in investment funds which
provide the Group with the share of returns but not any direct
decision making power nor any direct voting right to involve in and
control the daily operations. As the Group is able to remove the
unrelated investment manager without a cause, the Group has
concluded that it acts as principal in these cases, and therefore
has consolidated these funds. Particulars of the consolidated
investment fund are disclosed in note 40 to these financial
statements. Net assets attributable to other holders of redeemable
shares of the consolidated investment fund is included in “Trade
and other payables and accruals” in the consolidated statement of
financial position (note 25) since these redeemable shares can be
put back to the Group for cash. The realisation of these net assets
cannot be predicted with reasonable accuracy since it is subject
to the actions of these holders. Changes in net assets attributable
to other holders of redeemable shares of consolidated investment
fund is included in “Other gains and losses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (note
7).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

DETERMINING WHEN TWO SEPARATE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS ARE AGGREGATED AND TREATED AS A
SINGLE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

When the Group entered into transactions with the same parties
at the same time involving two or more financial instruments,
significant judgement is required in assessing whether these
financial instruments should be treated as a single or separate
instruments and the Group has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Factors considered include whether the contracts
relate to the same risk and there is no apparent economic need
or substantive business purpose for structuring the transactions
separately that could not have been accomplished in a single
transaction. Judgement is made on a case-by-case basis
to determine whether these financial instruments should be
accounted for on an aggregate basis. For the convertible bonds
issued by a subsidiary of the Company and the profit guarantee
provided by two of the subscribers as described in note 27 to
these financial statements, the Group had concluded that the risk
is not identical and there are substantive business purposes for
each of the instruments and therefore has accounted for these
instruments separately.

RECOGNITION OF UNDERWRITING AND PLACING
COMMISSION INCOME

The Group had entered into underwriting agreements in which the
Group is committed to purchase some or the entire unsubscribed
portion of the securities underwritten in return for an underwriting
and placing commission income. Underwriting and placing
commission income is recognised when the obligations and the
terms under the agreement have been fulfilled. The Group is
required to exercise considerable judgement particularly when the
amount agreed to be paid to the Group is at the sole and absolute
discretion of the issuer.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

RECOGNITION OF UNDERWRITING AND PLACING
COMMISSION INCOME (Continued)

Where the Group is unable to determine the probable amount
of commission income that would be received by the Group
ultimately, the commission income is recognised to the extent that
can be measured reliably. Significant changes in management’s
judgement in subsequent reporting period may result in material
revenue adjustments in future periods.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the Group’s
major service lines as follows:

(@ trading business — trading of chemical products and energy
and minerals products;

(b) securities brokerage and financial services — provision of
discretionary and non-discretionary dealing services for
securities, securities placing and underwriting services,
margin financing and money lending services, corporate
finance advisory and general advisory services;

(c) asset management services — provision of fund management
and discretionary portfolio management and investment
advisory services; and

(d) proprietary trading — investment holding and securities
trading.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

No operating segments identified have been aggregated in arriving
at the reportable segments of the Group. Each of these operating
segments is managed separately as each of the service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing approaches.

—

Securities
brokerage
and Asset
Trading financial management Proprietary
business services services trading Total
BHERER Y3
ECES SRR EERH HEEE st
2015 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-EE THET TR THET THET TAET
. _______________________________________________________________________________|
Revenue U za
From external customers REINAEP 234,192 130,634 40,852 - 405,678
From other segments REEMDH - 66 - - 66
Reportable segment revenue T E IR & 234,192 130,700 40,852 - 405,744
Reportable segment result WHRFDEHES (5,865) 14,230 6,939 4,286 19,590
Interest income from margin REARBE R
financing and money B R
lending service FEMA - 2,911 - - 2,911
Increase in net assets attributable AR EES
to other holders of redeemable AERRGD
shares of a consolidated Hinks B AEIG
investment fund BEFEZM - - - (2,811) (2,811)
Depreciation e 62 701 25 17 805
Fair value gain on held for RHIEEEREKRE
trading investments Z N FEWE - - - (48,649) (48,649)
Finance costs A 9,559 1 - 14 9,574
Reportable segment assets TRRABEE 224,228 93,092 27,039 185,382 529,741
Expenditures for additions to N )
non-current segment assets* NEEEZHX* - 118 - - 118
Reportable segment liabilities T H{E2HEE 222,356 75,329 18,678 21,968 338,331
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZEBER )
Securities
brokerage
and Asset
Trading financial  management Proprietary
business services services trading Total
ECES SRR EERG BZEE st
2014 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z—mF TET FET FHET TET FET
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|

Revenue i
From external customers REIREP 355,032 57,311 2,245 = 414,588
From other segments REEMDH - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue A H 5 #p iz 355,032 57,311 2,245 = 414,588
Reportable segment result B:E e 9 37,986 (5,328) (10,990) 21,677
Interest income from margin REARBER

financing and money EXREZ

lending service FIEMA - 1,125 - - Y29
Depreciation neE 109 716 1 4 830
Fair value loss on held for HIEEERZKRE

trading investments < ATEEE - - - 1,803 1,803
Net losses on disposals of property, & « BE &

plant and equipment LEEBRFE 285 - - - 285
Reportable segment assets WHRRPBEE 156,601 84,393 1,207 93,643 335,844
Expenditures for additions to NEE )

non-current segment assets* DEEE Y 248 - - 73 321
Reportable segment liabilities T H{EFHEE 154,930 20,312 1,082 97 176,421
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5.

—_

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments, other income (excluding
dividend income), directors’ emoluments, equity-settled share-
based payment expense; interest expenses on convertible bonds,
other borrowings and loan from a shareholder; share of results
of associates accounted for using the equity method; income
tax expense; and corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segments. Common expenditures are allocated
between operating segments based on proportion of segment
revenue where necessary. Inter-segment revenue are charged
on the expenses incurred by the relevant subsidiary plus certain
percentage.

Segment assets include all assets but available-for-sale
investment; interests in associates; current tax assets; derivative
financial instruments and bank balances of the Group. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment,
which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarters. Segment
liabilities include all liabilities but derivative financial instruments;
current tax liabilities and convertible bonds. In addition, corporate
liabilities which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The total presented for the Group’s operating segments are
reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the

7 RPER (47

REBEKE DB PTE M BFEREREE
R BRRENN 2 T EHBEE 2 HER

financial statements as follows: R
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FHT
Reportable segment revenue AR Hla 405,744 414,588
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 73 B I 2 ¥ 8 (66) =
Group’s revenue AEE W 405,678 414,588
Reportable segment result AJ R EPEE 19,590 21,677
Changes in fair value of derivative PTHEESMI A
financial instruments NFEEEE 4,825 =
Other income A 42 35
Equity-settled share-based A E IR D
payment expense NEN3 - (4,218)
Finance costs LD ®IN (25,362) (5,080)
Share of results of associates paK () i/NE S (14,140) (1,156)
Corporate expenses ** NG (16,685) (13,908)
Group’s loss before income tax REERRATSHAIEE (31,730) (2,650)
Reportable segment assets Al RO EPEE 529,741 335,844
Avalilable-for-sale investment A ERE - 100
Interests in associates kNGl P iy 73,945 92,092
Current tax assets BNEAFR IR & B - 156
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 3,667 2,121
Cash and cash equivalents He MReZRIAHR 60,536 94,467
Corporate assets NEIEE 3,272 3,621
Group’s assets REBEE 671,161 528,401
**  mainly staff costs, including directors’ emoluments and other *  FERBINA BREEZESHERA

professional fees

EXEM

“ER-REFHR BRERARIA

v
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

5.

—

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5. ZERER )

2015 2014
—EB-afF —E-lF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FATT
Reportable segment liabilities Al EROIEE 338,331 176,421
Derivative financial instruments MESRIA - 203
Current tax liabilities BNEAFRIE & (& 5,067 2,399
Convertible bonds AR 148,462 133,900
Corporate liabilities NRIBE 1,013 1,252
Group’s liabilities AEBEE 492,873 314,175
Reportable
segment total Unallocated Consolidated
AR AR Ko E RE
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-HF —T-NOF ZB-HF —_T-NF ZB-RHF _TNF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FTHERT FHT FHET FHT FExT FHT
Other material items HEttEEEH
Depreciation e 805 830 231 242 1,036 1,072
Finance costs BhE AR 9,574 - 25,362 5,080 34,936 5,080
Expenditures for NEIERE
additions to BEZRAX
non-current
assets” 118 321 15 13 133 334

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of the Group’s revenue from external customers and
the Group’s non-current assets*. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the subsidiary
operates. The geographical location of non-current assets*
is based on the physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, the location of the operations to
which they are allocated, in the case of trading rights, and the
location of the operations, in the case of interests in associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5. ZERER#)

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets*

RENRBEE 2 Wz EREEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —FTUF ZTB-HF —TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FHT T
Hong Kong (domicile)* B8 (G ) # 403,266 398,954 4,180 5,161
Mainland China R A 2,412 15,634 74,133 92,214
405,678 414,588 78,313 97,375

Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investment, derivative
financial instruments and other assets.

# The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Bermuda where the Group does not have any activities. The Group
has the majority of its operations in Hong Kong, and therefore, Hong
Kong is considered as the Group’s place of domicile for the purpose
of disclosures as required by HKFRS 8, Operating Segments.

The Group’s customers include the following with whom

- FRPDEETBREAIRLERE 07

EERMTAREMEE -

2 ARR/—HRBREZMALZ &

BERQR > NREENEREEETM
K5 ARBERBOEBLURERS
Rt - EEP B RELERIE 8 IHRLE
DEMAREZLHEMS - BEERR
RSB EEM A o

AEEZEFPBEETIRERSHEBAR

transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue: EEWZT10% 2R -
2015 2014
= —TmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET AT
Customer A (ote ) P AMED 234,192 336,178
Customer B (ote2) = FBMHE 67,566 52,402
Notes: PitEE
1. Revenue from this customer is attributable to trading business 1. REZBEFPZWRTIBRE SHEBMH

2. Revenue from this customer is attributable to securities brokerage
and financial services

E2

2. REREPZUMETTANEFLLR

& BRI EK

oS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

6.

—

REVENUE 6. W=
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Commission and brokerage income BHEXGZAER
from securities dealing and AL A LA R
handling fee income FEEWA 4,952 2,534
Financial advisory and R RFERBEWA
consultancy fee income 1,317 1,250
Fund and portfolio management and A RIREHEER
investment advisory fee income AR ERBEEERA 39,703 2,111
Fund and portfolio performance and A kIRBEHERE R
incentive fee income HEEIE U A 1,149 134
Interest income from margin financing FREE R E KRS
and money lending service ZFBWA 2,911 1,125
Trading of goods and products BEEBYRED 234,192 355,032
Underwriting and placing A REEASWA
commission income 121,454 52,402
405,678 414,588
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HftWzmKRESE
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Changes in fair value of financial DEAFREEEZ R
instruments classified as held for TAZAFEZE
trading 53,474 (1,786)
Changes in net assets attributable to FEREESEL
other holders of redeemable shares of Min 2 HAbRea A
a consolidated investment fund EIEEEFECEH (2,811) -
Net foreign exchange losses HNGE 518 F BE (3,741) (3,378)
Net losses on disposals of property, HEYE - BEX
plant and equipment R BB ) (285)
46,919 (5,449)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

8.

OTHER INCOME 8. HflA
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Dividend income A& B A 1,714 =
Interest income from banks and others RIT R EABFLEUA 41 13
Sundry income LT PN 1 22
1,756 85

FINANCE COSTS 9. REMAK
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHAT

Effective interest on liability AMRESBGES D 2 EREFE

component of convertible bonds 25,362 4,199
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEE ZF S 9,574 567
Interest on loan from a shareholder RKE—BREZERKZHE - 314
34,936 5,080

“ER-REFHR BRERARIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

10. FRETGHATE R

2015 2014
—E-5F —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FH&T
Loss before income tax is arrived BRETIS TR Es 18
at after charging: B T5EIE
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN BN & 1,280 1,230
Minimum lease payments under operating i & iEF & & FA 4
leases in respect of land and buildings ZEIRAEHE 6,756 5,786
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments & T (BEEEHE)
— Fees, salaries, allowances and bonuses - 2% - ¥4 - 2B RIEAT 160,468 30,236
— Equity-settled share-based - BRAEER D
payment expense (note 29) A (F5E29) - 4,218
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions* — ERAEFHEI (K> 1,055 1,058
161,523 35,512

* The amount included forfeited contributions of HK$384,000 (2014:
HK$235,000) in respect of employees who leave employment prior
to such contributions vesting fully in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme.

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, Hong Kong
profits tax was provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits for the respective years.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no provision
for PRC Corporate Income Tax has been made as the Group did
not derive any assessable profits in the PRC for the respective

11.

*

ZeBEEREENEBMETREARTE
SR E 2 AR BB B R B AT BB 2
W2 #£5%384,0008 T ( — T — P04 ¢

235,000 7T) °

8RR
Bz ZT—HEK_Z—WNE+ A
—t+—HILFE  FEINNESHESAEF
[E(EETERFUR 2 16.5% st 12 B 4E -

HE_ZT—AFE-_ZT—WNFE+=A
=t+—BIEFE  EMRPEREMS
MEtiREE  RERASERNSEFE
I 48 A P B EE A R FEER B A ©

years.
2015 2014
—E-5f%F —T—UF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Current tax B HATH I8

Hong Kong profits tax BEFE
— Provision for current year - NEEHEHE 2,668 2,399
— Over provision in respect of prior years - iBEFEBEERE S - (20)
Total income tax expense FrS Rt L e xa 2,668 2,379
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FRSBiMA (#)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and loss before SR ERMSHAEBERERR
income tax at applicable tax rate is as follows: Z’T—\Zﬁ“,ﬁﬁﬁﬂ—l— :
2015 2014
—E-hfF —T—NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Loss before income tax BRETIS TR ES 1B (31,730) (2,650)
Notional tax at Hong Kong profits BREBNEHHE 16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—U%F : 16.5%)
B ZERMIE (5,236) (437)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ FAEAM AARER AL L 2
operating in other jurisdictions MEBARTRBX
a7 (352) (203)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BERBMAZ RIS E
tax purpose (3,725) (1)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A HIF G 2 FRFG e &
tax purpose 3,598 3,911
Tax effect of unused tax losses not REREEERIBEE 2
recognised as deferred tax asset AREARIEEEZ
MG E 6,651 2,891
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised REEHAZBEFE
tax losses utilised this year REERHIEERE
LB (688) (4,034)
Tax effect of temporary differences REBRLDRIEER
not recognised BT E 124 113
Tax effect of share of results of associates 7B & /A B %45
2GR E 2,333 191
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEREREEG - (20)
Other differences Hith=2 (37) (32)
Income tax expense FTS iR 2,668 2,379

=il
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

11.

12.

13.

—

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The Group has unrecognised estimated tax losses of
HK$82,559,000 (2014: HK$49,495,000) to carry forward against
future taxable income. Tax losses of HK$73,770,000 (2014:
HK$44,734,000) are related to certain subsidiaries operating in
Hong Kong and can be carried forward indefinitely under the
current tax legislation. In addition, certain subsidiaries operating in
the PRC had tax losses of HK$8,789,000 (2014: HK$4,761,000)
which are subject to expiry period of five years from the year
in which the tax loss arose. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the estimated tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams against which these
unused tax losses can be utilised.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was proposed or paid during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

LOSS PER SHARE
BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$34,385,000 (2014: loss of approximately HK$5,040,000)
and the weighted average number of 3,480,484,748 (2014:
3,275,104,100%) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of diluted loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$34,385,000 (2014: loss of approximately HK$9,194,000)
and the weighted average number of 3,480,484,748 (2014
3,275,104,100%) ordinary shares after adjusting for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year, calculated as follows:
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AEBEBABRAMGTHEER
82,559,000/8 (= F—PU4F : 49,495,000
PETT) + DAAEEE B R 2R 2 FEER T UL A
4 o FRIAE1E 73,770,000 7L ( —F—Y
F 44,734,000/ 7T ) THEE FTRBEBL
BB ARER - BRRIRRITREIE
IR ARAESE o AN - B TR ELZER
Bt/ A Bl A B 18 E518 8,789,000 8 7T (=
T—PO4 : 4,761,000/87T) © BRELER
BEB FERARFEEER - AR A A
VEIR SE R AR B SR 2 R R s F R %
TR - BB ET B IR B R RERIEIE R
BEE -

8=\

BE-_Z—RAFk=_ZT—NF+=A
=+—HILFE  SEEFRREIRE
EFIRE - BMEHRLEE B ARIE
ERREEARE -

BREER

BREXREE
EREAREEIIREARNTES AEML
518 49 34,385,00078 T ( — & — PO 4 :
E518495,040,000/870) N FREEITE

BAY 2 INREFE 2R 3,480,484,748 % (—
TP : 3,275,104,100 0% *) 51 &

BR#EER
BREEBERNERMEAEEENT
ARz ZEELRARE  REBERAA%H
B AL E184734,385,0008 L (=&
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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13. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

13.

(A) LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

BRER @)
BRBESE &)
(A) AL EIHEEAELEE

Effect of contingent consideration
shares

SRR ERDZHE

COMPANY
2015 2014
—E-EE —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FET
For the purpose of basic loss FTESRENEE
per share (34,385) (5,040)
After tax effect of effective interest MRBGr R
on the liability component AmRESBESS
of convertible bonds ZEBRFE - 2,605
After tax effect of fair value changes I FEIS £~
on the derivative component A MBS AT AR D
of convertible bonds 2N THEES - -
Effect of earnings on conversion HIARR R —FEH B AR
of convertible bonds issued by BT 2 AR ES
a subsidiary of the Company 2 BRIz E - (6,759)
For the purpose of diluted loss STEEREEERE
per share (34,385) (9,194)
(B) WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY (B) ZEMNEFIH
SHARES
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-lF
Number of Number of
shares shares*
R B ARNEE
For the purpose of basic loss per share &G EAREE 3,480,484,748 | 3,275,104,100
Effect of share options ERE s TE - =
Effect of convertible bonds issued RRBIEITZ A RRES
by the Company 2B - _

For the purpose of diluted loss
per share

A EESREEER

3,480,484,748

3,275,104,100

“ER-REFHR BRERARIA
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13. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 13. BREE (&)

—

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

On 16 June 2014, Sheng Yuan Financial Services Group Limited
(“SYFS”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued
convertible bonds with the principal amount of HK$45,000,000
(details are set out in note 27 to these financial statements).
Subject to attainment of certain profit conditions, these convertible
bonds are convertible into ordinary shares of SYFS at a conversion
price of HK$10,000, at the option of the holders of the convertible
bonds, which created a potential dilutive effect to the basic loss
per share. None of these convertible bonds are assumed to have
been converted into ordinary shares of SYFS for the year ended
31 December 2015 as it would result in decrease in diluted loss
per share. In the calculation of the diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2014, these convertible bonds are
assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares of SYFS.

On 19 November 2014 and 30 December 2014, the Company
issued convertible bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$135,000,000 (details are set out in note 27 to these financial
statements). The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion of these convertible bonds as it would
result in a decrease in diluted loss per share.

The Company has outstanding share options, which were granted
on 25 August 2011, 24 July 2013, 19 June 2014 and 20 June
2014 with exercise price (adjusted after share-subdivision) of
HK$0.280, HK$0.183, HK$0.250 and HK$0.245 respectively.
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume an
exercise of these share options since it would result in a decrease
in diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share also does not assume
the issue of the Company’s contingent consideration shares of
556,585,714 (after share-subdivision) in aggregate as the relevant
profit target as disclosed in note 30 to these financial statements
has not been satisfied at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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13. SREE(®)

BREEER (7

© RHESRESREEEAMNS B
E-F-WF+ZA=t+—AILEE
2 BB IE T OB ERRZED
RS SRR I 3 28 FT 0B 2 AR (3 R AR E 10
—T-WF—A—BETHAE -

13. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

* The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year ended
31 December 2014 for the purposes of basic and diluted loss per
share has been calculated by assuming the share-subdivision as
disclosed in note 28 to these financial statements had occurred on
1 January 2014.

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14. EEMERTEBESHAL

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the

EEME
ENMENARAREE MR

directors of the Company are as follows: T
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and Share-based scheme
Fees allowances payment* contributions Total
ERERIEHE
e HERER RAER hE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
Fis Fis Fia T Fib
. ________________________________________________________________________________|]
2015 —E-1fF
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William HBAREE 200 1,850 - 113 2,163
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara g2t 200 1,590 - 102 1,892
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Xu Guocai (note i) RBA S (P aED) 263 - - - 263
Independent Non-Executive ~ BYFEHTESE
Directors
Dr. Huan Guocang (note ii) EEEE T (FEi) 113 - - - 113
Mr. Lo Ka Wai BRERE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Wu Fred Fong HREE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Qi Wenju (note iii) BRI A (Bt aEiin) 78 - - - 78
1,254 3,440 - 215 4,909

“ER-REFHR BRERARIA
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14. EEMERABRSHFAL(E)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEME 2
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and Share-based scheme
Fees allowances payment* contributions Total
ERERGE
e HERER R e et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TR TET TR

2014 —2-ImF
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William D REAE 200 1,846 - 111 2,157
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara (note 1) 8252z £ (KizE 1) 117 925 951 60 2,053
Ms. Lin Min (note 2) ML (fiE2) 64 1,659 - 5 1,728
Ms. Kwong Wai Man, BEgL L (H:E3)

Karina (note 3) 117 1,182 - 12 1,311
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Xu Guocal REIA A 600 = 159 = 759

Independent Non-Executive ~ BYHFHITEE

Directors
Mr. Lo Ka Wai (note 4) BEafEiE (M) 165 — 159 - 324
Mr. Qi Wenju MRS 200 - - - 200
Mr. Wu Fred Fong (note 5) R4 (FiFES) 167 = 159 = 326
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (note 6) 3R E13% 5% 4 (55 6) 64 - — - 64
Mr. Lam Kam Tong (note 7) WMIBE A (FHFE7) 33 - - - 33
1,727 5,612 1,428 188 8,955
* These amounts represent the estimated value of share * ZESTIEBEBEA R B RERTSIF
options granted to the directors under the Company’s TESZBREZMGAHEE - ZFH
share option schemes. The value of these share options is et 2 BETRE XS 15 MR K

AEBASFTE 2 D K& A R M At

. ) ) 2 -RUCEREZE - THFBER
based payments as set out in note 3.15 to these financial S B R SR T 09 o

statements. Further details of the share options granted are
set out in note 29 to these financial statements.

measured according to the accounting policies for share-

100
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014. No emolument was paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, nor as compensation for loss of office.

Notes:

i. Removed as non-executive director on 8 June 2015
i. Appointed as independent non-executive director on 8 June 2015
. Retired as independent non-executive director on 22 May 2015

Appointed as executive director on 1 June 2014

Retired as executive director on 25 April 2014

Resigned as executive director on 1 August 2014

Appointed as independent non-executive director on 5 March 2014
Appointed as independent non-executive director on 1 March 2014
Retired as independent non-executive director on 25 April 2014
Resigned as independent non-executive director on 1 March 2014

No ok oD~

EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included two (2014: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2014: two) individuals
during the year are as follows:

4, EEMERITEESFA L (E)

EEME 2

WMEEEI LT - UREXREHRE
HE-_Z—AFEK-_ZT—HNFE+=A
=t+t—HRUEFEZEAME - NEEW
BERESINME - ERRSIESINA
AEB SR IMAREEE 2 BESKIES
BERAE o

HIRE -

E—ENA—HERERTES
E—ME= AR RBRERBUIFNTES
E—MFE= A - AREERBIUINTES
AT -—NEFENA -+ RAREBUIFATES
R-Z—NFE= A -BREBLIERNTES

N o g s on =

TEBRSHALTHE
AEEAKBE s AERRFALEEMR
F2(ZE—OF: =R)EF - WEZH
TN EXDHRER - FRARNB T =5
AL (ZF—F : MR 2T -

2015 2014
—E-EF —ET—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 7,360 3,793
Discretionary bonuses B IEIEAL 129,946 =
Share-based payment B3R - 2,093
Inducement to join IR 2 52E) - 2,275
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  iRRIBAET SRR 374 177
137,680 8,338
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14. EEMERAERESHALT(E)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) TEREFALTME 2
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no BE-_T—AFK-_Z—NF+_H
emolument was paid by the Group to the above remaining three =+ —BIEFE - AEEWER LR
(2014: two) individuals as compensation for loss of office. T=%(ZF—MF : m%) AT

TIERBERAE -

=Ry

The emoluments of these remaining three (2014: two) highest paid BRT=%(ZF—MNF : MB)&EEHA
individuals fell within the following bands: T2MEeNF TR -

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
—B-FHF —ZT—mEF
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 # T - 2,500,000 87T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T — 4,000,000 7T - 1
HK$41,000,001 — HK$41,500,000 41,000,001 #7T — 41,500,000 77T 2 -
HK$55,500,001 — HK$56,000,000 55,500,001 %7t — 56,000,000 77T 1 -
3 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y5 - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements  equipment vehicles Total
B £E
HEMEEE K&tE RE #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2014 R-Z-NE—-A—A
Cost %N 2,214 3,857 1,018 7,089
Accumulated depreciation REtITE (1,991) (1,905) (221) (4,117
Net carrying amount FEEE 223 1,952 797 2,972
Year ended 31 December 2014 EHZE—ZF—&
+tZA=+—HLFE
Opening net carrying amount FHEREFE 223 1,952 797 2,972
Additions NE 10 137 187 334
Additions through acquisition of B BUE KB A A
a subsidiary (note 30) ANE (f5E30) - 18 — 18
Disposals HE (153) (132) = (285)
Depreciation e (76) (787) (209) (1,072)
Translation differences bE =% (4) 2) = ©6)
Closing net carrying amount FRIREFE = 1,186 775 1,961
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—NF
+=A=+-H
Cost (DN 1,991 3,853 1,205 7,049
Accumulated depreciation ZEFE (1,991) (2,667) (430) (5,088)
Net carrying amount AREFE - 1,186 775 1,961
Year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE_-Z—ffF
+t-B=+—-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FYIREFE = 1,186 775 1,961
Additions NE 22 111 - 133
Disposals HE - (3) - ®)
Depreciation e (8) (766) (262) (1,036)
Translation differences fE X =5 () @) ©6) 9)
Closing net carrying amount FIREEEFE 13 526 507 1,046
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-0%F
+=HB=+-—H
Cost XA 2,012 3,955 1,197 7,164
Accumulated depreciation 2ETHE (1,999) (3,429) (690) 6,118)
Net carrying amount REFE 13 526 507 1,046
103

“ER-REFHR BRERARIA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR MR

For the

year ended 31 December 2015

BE-FT-RF+-A=+—AILFE

15.

16.

104

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, none of property, plant and equipment
(2014: net carrying amount of HK$74,000) were held under
finance leases.

TRADING RIGHTS

15.

16.

M BMENRKE®E)
R-E—RAE+-_A=+—08 ' #EY
¥ BEARE(ZZE—NUFE: FEF
B 74,0008 70) TIREmEMRLES -

BE#
2015 2014
—E-E%F —T—UF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET

Opening and closing net carrying amounts &% & 4% BR A

3,322 3,322

Trading rights represent the eligibility rights to trade on or through
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and the Stock Exchange.
The trading rights have no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the Group can use to generate net cash flows. As a result,
the trading rights are considered by the management as having
an indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute net
cash inflow indefinitely. Trading rights will not be amortised until
its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
trading rights is allocated to the CGU which engaged in the
securities brokerage and financial services.

Recoverable amount for the CGU was determined based on value-
in-use calculation. The calculation use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a one-
year period, and discount rate of 24% (2014: 14%). Cash flows
beyond the one-year period are extrapolated for four years using
a zero growth rate (2014: zero). The growth rate is determined
based on management’s expectations for the market development
and is not expected to exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segment. Apart from
the considerations described in determining the value-in-use of
the CGU above, the Group’s management is not currently aware
of any other probable changes that would necessitate changes in
its key estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

17. AMEHERE

2015 2014
= —FF
HK$000 HK$'000
T TR

FEEMBARE S

Unlisted equity securities

- 100

The Group’s unlisted equity investments were stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair
value cannot be measured reliably.

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

REE 2 IF E MR E B IR AR
ESIER - RN AR AR A TFEZ
BEAKN  EFRRBEEAUEAEER
FiE -

18. REEE AT 2=

2015 2014

—E—EHEF — g4

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#&T FHET

Share of net assets PMEBEFE 32,546 48,718
Goodwill EES 41,399 43,374
73,945 92,092

Particulars of the principal associate at 31 December 2015 are as

/\\
R

—E—RF+-_HA=+—H8 =EH
BARZFBOT

follows:
Percentage of
Country of Particulars of interest held Principal activities and
Name incorporation paid-up capital by the Group” place of operation
rEEARE FEXEK

8 MR IER BERAFE EREol REED
Xinhua (Daqging) PRC RMB85,714,286 25.0*  Operation of an electronic

Merchandise Exchange & ARHE 85,714,286 7T merchandise exchange

Company Limited*
(“XHME”)

HE (KB )EmR S
BRAR*([#ER )

platform for commodity

goods trading in the PRC
RHBZKERRENES

ZEFEmRSZ¥a
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. R NT 2R (&)

The Group is principally engaged in trading business, proprietary
trading and the provision of securities brokerage and financial
services and asset management services. XHME is engaged in
the operation of an electronic merchandise exchange platform
for commodity goods trading, which provides trading, clearing
financing and logistics services to suppliers and purchasers on the
electronic trading platform. The investment in XHME represents
an opportunity with earning potentials from the electronic
merchandise exchange platform for commodity goods trading,

AEETEREEEXRK  B2EE -
REEBFELCLERRBEAREEEE
R% - A REEEmENES CE

FEMmRZFE REFEFFamft
EELERRERRS  GERENYR

7% - WA ZIRE R RIEERE

BHOZETEMRHFRERBEERTN
28 AREAKEIREARERES
HE RIBRBARIRZ RIERRES < #E

and it is in line with business strategy of the Group to diversify the FIRIELTMARIELR  WEMISHRE -
Group’s business portfolio and broaden the income base. XHME

is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not

available.

* acquired during the year ended 31 December 2014 * REBEE=ZT—NOF+=-_A=+—H1

FEEWE
# not audited by BDO Limited @ REEBUEERSTMEEMER
UNGIE:= 4

" rounded to the nearest tenth of one percent " AEERELIEA T2 —
TR TEE B EMARCEZEER
B 07 FE A 5 A B VB S F R DA IR R A
SEEH AR ZHEER

The following tables illustrate the financial information of XHME
extracted from its unaudited management accounts and adjusted
to reflect adjustments made by the Group when applying the
equity method:

2015 2014

= —FmF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET THT

Current assets mENEE 30,609 86,791
Non-current assets IETEEE 106,719 121,466
Current liabilities mENEE (7,016) (13,463)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - -
Net assets BEFRE 130,312 194,794
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REE AT 2w (&)

2015 2014
= —T-mE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FH&xT FAT
Revenue w5 594 1,253
Expenses X (57,204) (5,836)
Loss from continuing operations and RERFBELCEEB EBER
total comprehensive income FHKERRE (56,610) (4,583)

No dividend was received from XHME during the years ended HE-FT-—AFEK-FT—MNF+=A
31 December 2015 and 2014. =T BHIEFE - SEREGTE AT ER
RS o

R TR RS B R AR B B RS IR
RN R B 2 s 2 BREE Bk

Reconciliation of the above financial information of XHME to the
carrying amount of the interests in associates recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

2015 2014
—B-afF —T-MmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Net assets of XHME B BEFE 130,312 194,794
Percentage of interests held by the Group” AN&EBFT#FEZ= B DL 25.0% 25.0%
Group’s share of net assets in XHME AEERREBBRSE
at the reporting date B EFE 32,546 48,651
Group’s share of net assets of individually ~ ANEBRIRE BEAD G
immaterial associates (ERIESEpNA=VNS)
at the reporting date EEFE - 67
Group’s share of net assets in associates ~ AEB D4R E MK RER
recognised in the consolidated PR S N R B EH#E
statement of financial position 32,546 48,718
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REt&E ARl 2w (&)
Reconciliation of the above financial information of XHME to the bl R BT B S B R B AR A B RS FR AR AT
share of results of associates recognised in the consolidated ROGHE AR ZELEE -

financial statements:

2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Loss for the year of XHME** i FTE NS IE (56,610) (4,583)
Percentage of interests held by the Group" ZA&EBATHEZRRE DL 25.0% 25.0%
Group’s share of results in XHME REBFANDGFREFT
for the year ES (14,151) (1,145)
Group’s share of results of individually REBEFADHER
immaterial associates for the year JEERBEE N AL 11 (11)
Group’s share of results in associates AEBFAD GGG ERRK
for the year recognised in the FrifE sl & N Rl 5EE
consolidated profit or loss (14,140) (1,156)
**  post-acquisition = WEETE
19. OTHER ASSETS 19. HittEE
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong BEAPREZBRAT]
Securities Company Limited (‘HKSCC”) (IBAEE]) 2ERNASER 50 50
Cash contribution to the Guarantee Fund ~RA&EBLEEREE S 2 RS HR
of HKSCC 50 50
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation ~ REBHEEE AR AR Z21LE
Limited 1,500 1,500
Deposits with the Stock Exchange REER T2 R ®
— Compensation Fund - HEES 50 50
— Fidelity Fund - BERES 50 50
— Stamp duty - ENTER 30 30
1,730 1,730
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. EFRHEMEBYERRUARBMNRK
PREPAYMENTS b1 |
2015 2014
—E-fF ZZ—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Trade receivables B AR 286,592 244 526
Other receivables and prepayments H A R BR R R TR 3R IE 4,638 5,420
Amount due from an associate JE U — B & A )RR IR - 6
291,230 249,952
Other receivables of the Group are neither past due nor impaired. N B H AL FE Y BR SR fEm B slOR B ©
Amount due from an associate was unsecured, interest-free and R — & AR RIBAEERT 28
repayable on demand. The analysis of trade receivables is as NERERER - BEHRWERZ O
follows: U
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Arising from the business of REEBEHBEBEES
dealing in securities
- HKSCC - BBEE 31,041 4,302
— Cash clients -BexEP 1,361 27
— Margin clients -ffFRERF 2,704 9,573
Arising from asset management services 2R B & EE 2RI 26,974 920
Arising from financial advisory and PEER SR
consultancy services 488 1,250
Arising from underwriting and KB #GE R AL E RS
placing services - 52,402
Arising from proprietary trading REBEEER - 19,793
Arising from trading business REBHFES 224,024 156,259
286,592 244,526
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. EZREMEBEWRFTUREBENRK

110

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two business days after the
respective trade dates. The amounts due from cash and margin
clients are repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement
date and bear interest at Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus a
spread of 3% to 8% (2014: 3% to 8%) per annum.

The Group does not provide any credit term to clients for its
financial advisory and consultancy services as well as asset
management services. Settlement of amounts arising from the
underwriting and placing services is in accordance with the terms
set out in the respective agreements, usually within one year after
the service obligation has been fulfilled.

Amount arising from proprietary trading represents margin
deposits placed with a securities broker. The excess of the
outstanding amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated
are repayable on demand.

The general credit periods granted to customers of trading
business are 365 days (2014: 180 to 365 days).

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015

5 (&)

KREEBEHFBEEEB EDREESEE
HATRERXZAMKMESRA - &
WH e MAFREPHIRANEE AL
WMEREE - WIBTHERFENEM
EEIEEQE(=F—MF : 3EE8E)
ArE °

7 5% 98 3 45 1 L B 55 o ) B ] AR A5 A
NREEEERBEFPRHETMAEEN -
K B AGH M BB RIS 2 RIR TR IB & 15
BATH ZIEREE - —RAERRBE
FE—FR-

KEBZEEE ZRBARFRNEFLLRL
ZHREH - REESBEBHMATAZ
REFRFRZSBALEBLER

RYZEE5EBRETPZ2—RIEEHA
365 H (ZZ—P4F : 1802 365H) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. EZREMEBEWRFTUREBNRK

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the amounts due from margin clients are
neither past due nor impaired except for HK$703,000 (2014: Nil)
where the amounts were past due for 181 — 365 days following
a trading suspension of the pledged securities. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary due to their track record with the Group and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The ageing analysis
of trade receivables in respect of other balances, based on due
date, is as follows:

5 (&)

RZE—FRAEF+_A=+—"8" 'K
703,000 L (=T —WHF : &) 2 FIA
HRERZBLFEFLERSEBEH181E
3865 BN - B HREF RIS &EE B
FRE - RIFBALSE  AREALE
BRITRE: - MBBERNAERAER
eEE - EREREEFIELRELE
% - BEMERIEL 2 B SRR ER
AT (EREBA) T ¢

2015 2014

—E—REF —ZT U4

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FAT

Not yet past due 1] A% 481 £ 224,024 156,259
0 - 30 days 02 30H 36,496 78,433
31 - 60 days 312 60H 2,843 261
61 — 90 days 61290 H 2,961 -
91 — 180 days 912 180 H 9,173 -
181 — 365 days 1812365 H 8,391 -
283,888 234,953

The amounts due from margin clients that are neither past due
nor impaired at the reporting date of HK$2,001,000 (2014:
HK$9,573,000) are secured by pledged marketable securities
with fair value of HK$17,177,000 (2014: HK$85,761,000). The fair
value of pledged marketable securities of each individual margin
client is higher than the corresponding outstanding balance. The
Group is permitted to sell or re-pledge these collaterals if that
client defaults in payments.

RS B HARE R @ H Jh R ORE 2 FE UK
R EF % 2,001,000 t( ==
— 9 4F : 9,573,000/ 7t ) Jh LA A F
B A17,177,0007%8 ;o ( = F — Y F :
85,761,000 7T) c BB EBEH1E
B RZEAAFEREFZEEREE
BEANFEHERBREZ REEEH -
AEEEEEZEFARERZBR
T HEIBEERZEERR -
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BE-FT-RF+-A=+—AILFE

20.

112

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The amount arising from trading business represents bills
receivables held by and factored to the banks with recourse
for cash proceeds. These bills receivables are neither past due
nor impaired at the reporting date. In the event of default by
the debtors, the Group is obliged to pay the banks the amount
in default. As the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownerships of these receivables, the Group continues
to recognise the whole carrying amounts of the receivables and
has recognised the cash received on transfer as collateralised
borrowings (note 26) until the receivables are collected or the
Group settles any losses suffered by the banks. At 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of these receivables and the associated
borrowings were HK$224,024,000 (2014: HK$156,259,000)
and HK$222,314,000 (2014: HK$154,924,000) respectively. The
difference between the carrying amount of receivables and the
associated borrowings was HK$1,710,000 (2014: HK$1,335,000).
The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of these
receivables and the associated borrowings are not materially
differing from their carrying amount.

The amount arising from underwriting and placing services at 31
December 2014 represents the balance due from a securities
broker who retained the service fee payable to the Group on
behalf of a client, which was disbursed to the Group upon client’s
approval. The amounts due from HKSCC, cash clients, brokers
and clients for its asset management as well as financial advisory
and consultancy services has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in their credit quality.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

21. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 21. BEEERAERE

2015 2014

= —FF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Listed equity securities ETRAES 17,173 51,652
Unlisted investments funds JEEMIREHES 167,131 20,306
184,304 71,958

EQUITY SECURITIES

Equity securities of HK$30,330,000 at 31 December 2014 were
placed under the margin account maintained with a securities
broker and were pledged for margin finance facilities obtained.
None of the equity securities at 31 December 2015 are pledged to
the securities broker or any third parties.

INVESTMENT FUNDS

Pursuant to the subscription agreements, the Group’s interests in
the above investment funds are in the form of redeemable shares,
which are puttable at the holder’s option and entitles the Group to
a proportionate stake in the respective funds’ net assets. These
investment funds are managed by the respective investment
managers who are empowered to manage their daily operations
and apply various investment strategies to accomplish their
respective investment objectives.

The Group also served as an investment manager for certain of
these investment funds and generated management fee income
(note 6) from managing assets on behalf of investors but is
terminable by independent board of directors without a cause.
The Group therefore does not consolidate the above investment
funds in which it holds an interest.

TN

R-E—NF+=-A=1+—BZBRAF
%+ 30,330,000 & LI R — B BHEL
ZIFREF  NAMERZITRRMERE
BRI - R_FE—AF+-_A=+—
B« BIERE S L R E = F K
RARFE S o

REET

RERBERZ  ARER LLAREES
ZHEDRSAIBOROEN - ATHETAA
EEED - AAKEARRILAIDES
HeBERE -2FREZSHEH
EREEEEARSERKAZHERKE
REEAZEHEZAZRERBEZRER
HEE -

AEBITAETHEFREEE 2RER
2 ARKRREEEEREEMELER
BWA(K5E6) EARBLEZEERN
AL EMEHZERT FAEL - B
b AEEY EGESARR Dk
BEEeHFAANK-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

21.

22.

114

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (Continued)
INVESTMENT FUNDS (Continued)

The total net asset value of the above investment funds of which
the Group is the investment manager and investment adviser at
31 December 2015 is HK$308,063,000 (2014: HK$25,465,000)
and HK$446,204,000 (2014: Nil), respectively. The Group’s
maximum exposure to loss from its interests in these investment
funds is limited to the carrying amount of HK$88,342,000 (2014
HK$20,306,000) and HK$76,272,000 (2014: Nil) included above.
Change in fair value of these investment funds is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in “Changes in fair value of financial instruments classified
as held for trading” within “Other gains and losses” (note 7), the
amount attributable to these investment funds of which the Group
is the investment manager and investment adviser amounted to
HK$21,325,000 (2014: HK$306,000) and HK$6,273,000 (2014:
Nil), respectively.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

21.

RHERERZRRE®)

REES (&)

FRAEEEARESERREBREZ
BREESGHN -_T—RAF+_A=1+—
Az &EFEERED 5 A308,063,000
Bt (=ZF — M : 25,465,000 T )
% 446,204,000% 7T( = T — M F -
m) o AEBEHHREERZEFRE
Ee v Eun & BRAEXREE
M 688,342,000 ;o( =T — I F :
20,306,000 7T ) K& 76,272,000 JT
—EE D) RIR - REREES
Z N EZEFF AGEBEREMEE
Wk EMmbsREBE] Z[D8EAE
BEEBZSRMIAEZAFEZEH ]
(MIsE7) AEEETRELERIEE
BERZEREESEREREI A
21,325,000 7T (ZZE—IU4 : 306,000
770 ) %6,273,0008 L ( ZF — U 4F :
) o

VAR

22, fTESMTITE

Assets Liabilities
BE aE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-HFE —T-MF —FB-HF —FT-EOF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FERT FA&T
Early redemption option BIRERESFANE
embedded in SYHL Bonds ZIRAIE EE
(note 27) (Mgzx27) 3,667 1,481 - -
Foreign exchange SNERIIE X
forward contracts - 640 - —
Interest rate swaps | Z f B - - - 203
3,667 2,121 - 203
Less: non-current portion e FERNERES
Early redemption option BRERESNE
embedded in SYHL Bonds ZIERIME EE R
(note 27) (M5 27) (3,667) (1,481) - —
Current portion BEAEE 75 - 640 - 203
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

No foreign exchange forward contracts or interest rate swaps
remain outstanding at 31 December 2015. The Group had the
following foreign exchange forward contracts at 31 December
2014 to manage the Group’s currency exposure in relation to
foreign currency receivables. The Group also used interest rate
swaps to minimise its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk of its
floating-rate United States dollar borrowings by swapping floating-
rate borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Major terms of
these financial instruments are as follows:

22, fTEEMIA(#)

R-E—RAF+_A=+—8 &L
AR ARBLH 2 INEERBE LD HF K=
H o KEEBR - Z—NFE+_-_A=+—
HEIBUATINERBIGH - MEBAE
BEEBEINERUER 2 BB AR - A&
B JhME A A R BB B i E SR E R =
BB AR BB EE R E - EHAIE
ELREEZEETLEEMER RS
MEMNEXRR ZEFEMIAEZEIER
KU

Contract rates Maturity Notional amount
BRER ESp R ERMHE
US$1: RMB6.2702 29/10/2015 Buy US$10,401,958

1ETTHARE6.27027T
US$1: RMB6.2950
1ETL A REE6.2950 7T

20/11/2015

—E—RFE+A=-F+N1H

—E-RF+—A=1H

B85 10,401,958 7T
Buy US$4,765,457
B 4,765,457 7T

Swaps Maturity Notional amount
= ZI8H EREE
1 month USD LIBOR plus 0.9% for 1.205% 29/10/2015 US$10,278,786
— B AETRBIBITRIZERS —T-RFE+AZ+ANR 10,278,786 37T

IN0.9% * MAFHE & 1.205%
1 month USD LIBOR plus 0.8% for 1.220%
—(EAAETRBERITREZERFE

N0.8% * LAFHEE A 1.220%

20/11/2015

—E—RF+—A=+H

US$4,709,123
4,709,123 % 7T
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23. TRUST BANK BALANCES HELD ON BEHALF OF 23. R&XEFHE 25 RITHER
CLIENTS
From the Group’s ordinary business of dealing in securities, it RUEEBEFFZABTERD  AEEH
receives and holds money deposited by clients in the course AR EZREFDMBREFEEFT
of conducting its regulated activities. These clients’ monies are Ko ZER P FIBF MR —EZ % B
maintained in one or more segregated bank accounts and earn SMIRITIRP - WIRRBERRITERE
interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates of MEOOOIE(ZZE—HE : 0.001F)
0.001% (2014: 0.001%) per annum. The Group has recognised STEAZEANERRFE c AEEDE
the corresponding trade payables to respective clients. REMNTEEF ZHEEZSER -
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. RERBEERAEA
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHEx FAT
Demand deposits and cash on hand EHFER K FERE S 60,536 94,467
Demand deposits earn interest at floating rates based on daily EHTFRIRBESRRITERNETHE
bank deposit rates. The prevailing market interest rates for BRI RBREF S - BAERPEZE
demand deposits in Hong Kong and in the PRC are 0.001% (2014: HfF R 2 R1T7m % F X5 5/50.001
0.001%) per annum and 0.350% (2014: 0.350%) per annum, E(=ZZ—@m4F :0.001E) %0.350E
respectively. (ZZ=—M4F : 0.350E) °
Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group is RMB FAREERERREEREREZS
of HK$9,687,000 (2014: HK$5,531,000). RMB is not a freely % /9,687,000 w( = & — 4 F:
convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign 5,531,000/ 7C) 2 AR - A\RBE
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement T ERE2EE - BEBEFBIAM
and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the HNE B IR AR A R A TE - [ REE
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through BHRTE  AEEEAABERENRS
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. INEEE 2 RITHARBHBRREME
ﬁg o
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. EZ N HMENERUREGTE

A
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Trade payables B SRR 64,804 18,395
Payable of net assets attributable to FEelREESAERRG
other holders of redeemable shares of ZHtIFE ARLEESFE
a consolidated investment fund <2 FERFOR 14,811 N
Other payables and accruals HEMENRRRESER 37,415 3,976
Amount due to an associate FES — A B & A R IR - 346
117,030 22,717
Amount due to an associate was unsecured, interest-free and B —HEBE AR RIEAEET 28
repayable on demand. The analysis of trade payables is as follows: NBRERER - E5RNERZON
I
2015 2014
= —F—lEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Arising from the business of REEFBEEER
dealing in securities
— Cash clients -HeERP 52,446 17,358
— Margin clients -HFRERP 12,358 1,037
64,804 18,395
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS  25.

(Continued)

The normal settlement terms of trade payables arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two business days after the
respective trade dates. The amounts payable to cash and margin
clients are repayable on demand.

No ageing analysis in respect of trade payables is disclosed as,
in the opinion of the directors, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the business nature.

BEZRHEMENRRURETE
A&

KRERBHEEXBZEHRNERZ —
REEHRZTERHBERZMEZEE
B-RBNREMAREFPZHRAARE

FAEEREBINAE  RUERERS
FERTRRFR Z BRER AT ©

26. BORROWINGS 26. /€
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE-HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Collateralised borrowings BIHEE

— Non-interest bearing* - TEr B> 222,314 37,839

— Interest bearing at USD LIBOR plus - BETTRBERITRIZER S
0.9% per annum 100.9% B FEFEET B - 80,335

— Interest bearing at USD LIBOR plus - RETLMBERITRZERFE
0.8% per annum $10.8% B FEFIEET B - 36,750
222,314 154,924

Collateralised borrowings represent the amount of financing
obtained from factoring the Group’s bills receivables (note 20)
amounting to HK$224,024,000 (2014: HK$156,259,000) and are
repayable within one year.

* Weighted average effective interest rate of these borrowings is 4.4%
(2014: 4.2%) per annum
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1B i 15 2 B & FXIE 224,024,000 % 7T
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 27. TRRES

2015 2014
= —FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FHIT
Liability component BEED
SYFS Bonds SYFS &% 35,249 29,813
SYHL Bonds BRI E 5 113,213 104,087
148,462 133,900
SYFS BONDS SYFS &%

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by SYFS
with WisePublic Holdings Limited, Mr. Li Gang and two other
entities (collectively referred to as the “Subscribers”) on 9 April
2014, SYFS issued zero coupon convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$16,000,000, HK$9,000,000, HK$10,000,000 and
HK$10,000,000 (“SYFS Bonds”) to respective Subscribers on
16 June 2014. The SYFS Bonds entitled the holders to convert
them into ordinary shares of SYFS (the “SYFS Conversion Shares”)
at a conversion price of HK$10,000 with certain profit conditions
of SYFS and its subsidiaries (“SYFS Group”) as set out in the
Company’s circular dated 16 May 2014. Any unconverted SYFS
Bonds shall be redeemed by SYFS at 100% of its face value within
30 business days from the third anniversary day (“SYFS Bonds
Maturity Date”).

RIESYFSEE RIZRBR A A ~ =Ml
EERSIMEER(ABIREAD
RZZF—MFEWNANBTYZRER
# SYFSR—_ZE—MWEXNA+AE
%R AEIT A S % /16,000,000 %
JT * 9,000,000/ 7T + 10,000,000 7
7t 510,000,000 7T 2 T B A ] R &
#([SYFSf&E % ]) - SYFSEH M 7 1%
BAER - A2 %R (E 10,0008
T W B SYFS E i A% ([ SYFS 2 iR AR
1) W HETHEBSYFS REK B
ANRI(ISYFS& B 1) 2 i M 2 154 (5
BARFTR-Z—MFERA /BT
AR o RN 2 SYFSEH 1S
I SYFSHE = AF A ([SYFSE4 2
H]) 1% 30fE& %8 NIZEEE 2 100%
fE[ -
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

SYFS BONDS (Continued)

The shareholders of WisePublic Holdings Limited, Ms. Zhang
Xiaomei, Mr. Wang Shengkun and Mr. Chen Bai Cao, are also
management of the SYFS Group. Two of the Subscribers,
WisePublic Holdings Limited (the “First Guarantor”) and Mr. Li
Gang (the “Second Guarantor”), provide profit guarantee to SYFS
Group on their consolidated profit after taxation as stated in the
subscription agreement, and details below:

Relevant Periods

REE

27. RARES (&)

SYFS &35 ()
BRERER AR 2R KRB/ L
F B A& MIRIAIR T LTS SYFS &
BeEBEAR HAMAREA(BIE
FEBRERABDTE-READ KT
M ([F ZREA D)) IR0 sk P
o FISYFSEEREHARMKRRRES
wmA B NRE - BREFBWT

Profit Guarantee

AR

For financial year 2014

—E-NFHBRFR

For two financial years 2014 and 2015
—E-MER_E-HFREMHRFR

For three financial years 2014, 2015 and 2016
ZENF - ZE-RFER T -RE=EMREE

In any Relevant Periods, the First Guarantor undertakes and
agrees to compensate the shortfall with the Profit Guarantee by
transferring any unconverted SYFS Bonds or SYFS Conversion
Shares held by it to the Company at a consideration of HK$1.
The SYFS Bonds transferred could be repurchased by the
First Guarantor at HK$1 within six months from the date of
such transfer if the shortfall is made good by the subsequent
consolidated profit after taxation of SYFS Group. The Second
Guarantor agrees to compensate the remaining shortfall by way of
similar compensation method with the First Guarantor, if the First
Guarantor fails to fully compensate the shortfall. In the situation
of the actual profit exceeds the amount of the Profit Guarantee,
the management of SYFS will have the right to pay any excess
profits as bonus to employees and/or dividend to shareholders
of SYFS. At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Profit Guarantee
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements as
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the effect is
insignificant to the Group.
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Not less than zero
TPRE

Not less than HK$20 million
12 20,000,000 77T
Not less than HK$50 million
550,000,000 77T

PERFEBEEE - E—REAEREL
B ERARAERLAFEMKLR
Z SYFST&E 5 sk SYFSH# I A 15 - R (B
BB WHERFRESEZTR
R o M~ REEAE —REAMUSYFSE
EHEZZBRBRESERFFE - F—R
FBAR AL EEEE 2 B AEET /S E A A A
1ABTHEEEEEISYFSES - £ =
REBEAREBEE —REAKREEHHE
TREZBRAT » ME—RFBAEUZ
HERZE  HETRBEIHRE - MER
o F BB G MR B FE - BISYFSE IR
BB R TR & &R T {E R SYFS B
B Z B4 - &,/ 3 [ASYFS IR BRIk 3% %
BoRZE—RFER-_ZT—MF+=H
=+—H  WENGE M BEREERE
MRE  FEARARARESRAHAE
B2 HETK -
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
SYFS BONDS (Continued)

Based on the terms of the subscription agreement, the SYFS
Bonds contain two components, (i) the liability component and
(i) the equity conversion component. The fair value of the liability
component of SYFS Bonds upon issuance was calculated at the
present value of the estimated coupon interest payments and
principal amount. The discount rate used in the calculation is
16.89%, representing the cost of debt applicable to SYFS for a
similar bond without conversion option at the issue date.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, none of the SYFS Bonds has
been converted into ordinary shares of SYFS. The movements of
the components of SYFS Bonds during the year are set out below:

27.

ARRES (&)

SYFS &2 ()

RIBRBE A &K - SYFSERBREM
2o ()REED KR BRE D
RETHSYFSEHRBERD 22 FE
REAZENSNREAE SR ZRE
AtE S EAAZITE R 316.89%
LN BT B BN & 5L itk 2 A UE
HEARN SYFS 2B A -

RZE—RAFR_FE—NF+_A
=+—H MESYFSEFH LB A
SYFS E3@A% - FASYFSEHAERK I
ZEEHYAT

Equity
Liability conversion
component component Total
BEMD ERABBD st
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FHET T FHT
At 1 January 2014 R=Z-—NFE—A—H - - -
Issued during the year FNEETT 27,208 17,792 45,000
Effective interest recognised EERERF X 2,605 - 2,605
At 31 December 2014and R=FT—MF
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—HK
—E-h%¥—HF—H 29,813 17,792 47,605
Effective interest recognised EERERF X 5,436 - 5,436
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—HF
+—-—B=+—H 35,249 17,792 53,041
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27.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
SYHL BONDS

Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into by the Company
on 5 November 2014 and 19 December 2014, the Company
issued convertible bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$135,000,000 (“SYHL Bonds”), to five individual subscribers
on 19 November 2014 and 30 December 2014. The SYHL Bonds
entitled the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the
Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.70 per share of
the Company (or HK$0.35 per share after share-subdivision) at
any time before the third anniversary date of the initial issue dates
(“SYHL Bonds Maturity Date”). The SYHL Bonds bear interests
at 8% per annum except that during the second and third
anniversary period, no interest shall be accrued to the holders
when the average closing price in respect of the Company’s
share for the last 30 consecutive trading days (“Current Market
Price”) before the second anniversary of the initial issue dates
(“Second Interest Payment Date”) and the SYHL Bonds Maturity
Date exceed HK$1.00 and HK$1.10 per share of the Company
(or HK$0.50 and HK$0.55 per share after share-subdivision)
respectively.

If the Current Market Price on the Second Interest Payment Date
exceed HK$1.00 per share of the Company (or HK$0.50 per share
after share-subdivision), the Company shall have the right to early
redeem the SYHL Bonds (in part or in whole), at the aggregate
amount of the outstanding principal and interest not later than 3
business days after the Second Interest Payment Date. Unless
previously redeemed, converted or cancelled, the Company will
redeem each SYHL Bonds on the SYHL Bonds Maturity Date at
100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with accrued
interest, if any.
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27.

ARRES (&)

BRREZERES

REARAR -_ZT-—NOF+—HARAR
—E-NFE+Z AT HBFRLZRER
& ARAR_ZE—NmE+—A+NA
RZZE—NE+_RA=+tHMALEZEA
BB ABITAZ %/ 135,000,00078
T AR E S ([ RIRZERES]) - 2%
IRERESE TRAAEN AR EE
HTRBZE=BFER ([ RRERE
FEIH R |) ATEM S 2 L2 i
BERARARND0.7078 7T (R MK #
AEEFR035BTT) AR SR REIER
Pz o B RIZERE S AFMEKBELT R -
HRE-RE=BFHE  HARER
R EEETRHZE - BFER (%
—ANEBR]) RERIERESD A A
RIZEEI0ER S B2 FHRTE ([E
RITE ) 2 Rl B A2 E A 1.00
BT R 11078 T (S DI #1& FA%0.50
BITR0558TT) » BINEFAAE
FE o

WRE—EMN BB 2 ERMEBBTR
AARRND1.008 T (HBRGIFHES
B%0.50%7T) - AR R A A ERE @
NEBRTENIEEZBRKEER
© M A B 2 4R AR B E B B R IE AR (B 5
(Bfn sk 2E0) o BRIEEATEER - HiR
i+ AR AR BRI E S EIH
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 27. AIRRES (&)
SYHL BONDS (Continued) BIRERES (&)
Based on the terms of the subscription agreements, the SYHL BERE RGN BRERES D
Bonds is bifurcated into three components, (i) the liability RS : ()BEHD  HITTETA
component, (i) the derivative component and (iii) the equity o RilVERLBED c REITRE
conversion component. The fair value of the liability component EH D 2 AFEZGEFEERNEMNR KR
upon issuance was calculated at the present value of the RNeefHoREHNE - HEMAZIR
estimated coupon interest payments and principal amount. K E17.18% £19.45% * BN 81T
The discount rate used in the calculation is 17.18%-19.45%, B HA BT B {aT 12 A BB (O 3R 42 4 K H 3
representing the cost of debt applicable to SYHL for a similar T2 BUESE AR BRIRIZER 2 BT K
bond without any early redemption and conversion option at the o BORIZERESITET A H R ET
respective issue dates. The fair values of the derivative component AR —T—MFR_FT—AF+=A
of the SYHL Bonds at the dates of issue, 31 December 2014 =+—RAZAVFENZEBILAERE
and 2015 were determined by reference to valuations performed FAEMRETEERARRAZER
by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, independent professionally B E BB EIT 2 (HEERE o EAFT
qualified valuers, using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. Details Rz 28 RBHR2FBNT
of the parameters and assumptions used in the model are as
follows:

19/11/2014  30/12/2014  31/12/2014  31/12/2015
—EF-mEFE+ —B-mF+ —F-mEtT —FB-EFT

Parameters B8 —At+hH —A=+H =Z—A=+—-H =—A=+-—H

Share price of the Company ~ ZRA & Z(E HK$0.48 HK$0.29 HK$0.29 HK$0.29

0.4887T 0.2978 7T 0.29787T 0.29 & T

Exercise price IfE(E HK$0.70 HK$0.35 HK$0.35 HK$0.35

0.70/87T 0.3587C 0.35/87T 0.35/87T

Remaining life of the derivative 74 T B 2 FIgA &5 3 years 3 years 2.88 years- 1.88 years-

3.00 years 2.00 years

3F 3% 2.88%F-3.00%F | 1.88F -2.005F

Risk-free rate A= 0.77% 1.02% 0.98%- 0.38%-

1.01% 0.41%

Expected volatility K 65.92% 63.97% 63.79%- 86.72%-

64.17% 88.83%

Expected dividend yield TEHIRE X 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 27. TRRES (&)
SYHL BONDS (Continued) BRIRERES (&)
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, none of the SYHL Bonds RZE—RAFRZZTE—NF+=A
has been converted into ordinary shares of the Company. The =+—B BERRERESHLRE
movements of the components of SYHL Bonds during the year RAFEBR o FRBRIZERESHEK
are set out below: oz BBEFINT -
Equity
Liability  Derivative conversion
component component component Total
fTETA R R
BEHS B B #st

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT TAT TAT

At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—WE—HF—H - - - -
Issued during the year FRETT 102,493 (1,901) 34,408 135,000
Changes in fair value RNEEZE - 420 - 420
Effective interest recognised ERRERANE 1,594 - - 1,504
At 31 December 2014 and R-ZE—NF
1 January 2015 +=ZA=+—-8kK

“ZE-H%¥—H—H 104,087 (1,481) 34,408 137,014
Changes in fair value NFEES) - (2,186) - (2,186)
Effective interest recognised ERRER X 19,926 - - 19,926
Interest paid EAFIE (10,800) - - (10,800)
At 31 December 2015 R-B-IfF

+=A=+-H 113,213 (3,667) 34,408 143,954

124

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BRZA
Number of Number of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each  of HK$0.05 each Nominal value
BREEO0.108T SKREE0.05ET
EEREE EEREA HE
HK$'000
FAT
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Authorised: JATE -
At 1 January 2014 R-EB—-NFE—-F—H 2,000,000,000 - 200,000
Increase pursuant to a special RB A RRZE I N
resolution (note (a)) GEAE) 2,000,000,000 - 200,000
Share-subdivision pursuant to REERIRER
a special resolution (note (d)) B i 148 (B et (d)) (4,000,000,000) 8,000,000,000 =
At 31 December 2014 and 2015 R=-Z—NER
—E2-hF
+=ZHA=+—H - 8,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: EZITRHE -
At 1 January 2014 R-EB-—NFE—-F—H 1,612,012,911 - 161,201
Issue of shares upon exercise of R IRRER 1T R D
share options (note (b)) (Fi=E (b)) 4,600,000 - 460
Issue of shares upon acquisition of P& — Rk B A )
a subsidiary (note (c)) R BT (BT (o)) 119,268,367 = 11,927
Share-subdivision pursuant to REERIRER
a special resolution (note (d) B 75 48 (P2 (o) (1,735,881,278) 3,471,762,556 -
At 31 December 2014 and R-Z—-DF
1 January 2015 +-A=+—-HE
“E2-H¥—-H—H - 3,471,762,556 173,588
Issue of shares upon exercise of — RTT{RIERIERF B/ TR (5
share options (note (g)) GEAR) - 14,800,000 740
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1F
+=B=+-H - 3,486,562,556 174,328
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

126

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 15 October 2014,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$200,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10
each in the capital of the Company to HK$400,000,000 divided
into 4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company issued
and allotted a total of 4,600,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the
capital of the Company to certain holders of share options upon
their exercise of these options.

Pursuant to the agreement in respect of the acquisition as disclosed
in note 30 to these financial statements, 119,268,367 shares of
HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company were allotted to the
vendor under the acquisition.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 29 December 2014,
each issued and unissued ordinary share of the Company with
a par value of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company was
subdivided into two issued and unissued ordinary shares of the
Company with a par value of HK$0.05 each with effect from
30 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company issued
and allotted a total of 14,800,000 shares of HK$0.05 each in the
capital of the Company to certain holders of share options upon
their exercise of these options.

All the issued shares rank pari passu in all respects including all
rights as to dividends, voting and return of capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(@)

Pursuant to the general meeting held on 24 September
2004, a share option scheme (“2004 Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company. The purpose of the 2004 Scheme
provides incentives or rewards to the eligible participants
(including but not limited to employees, directors, suppliers
and customers of the Group) (“Qualified Persons”) for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Pursuant to this 10-year term 2004 Scheme, the Company
can grant share options to the Qualified Persons for a
consideration of HK$1.00 for each grant payable by the
Qualified Persons. The total number of the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted
to each Qualified Person (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding share options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares then in issue. Pursuant
to a resolution passed on the annual general meeting of the
Company, dated 24 April 2014, the Company can grant
161,201,291 share options to the Qualified Persons. At
31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
options has been granted and remained outstanding under
the 2004 Scheme was 113,200,000 (2014: 150,000,000),
representing 3.2% (2014: 4.3%) of the Company’s shares in
issue at that date.

The exercise price in relation to each share option pursuant
to the 2004 Scheme shall be not less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date on which
the share option is offered to a Qualified Person; or (i) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; or (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company. There shall be no
minimum holding period for the vesting or exercise of the
share options under the 2004 Scheme but the share options
are exercisable within the option period as determined by the
board of directors of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

29. BB (E)
(@) FERIRE=TTEH SR REA

(@) Movements in share options to subscribe for ordinary shares
in the Company under the 2004 Scheme during the year and
their weighted average exercise price are as follows:

REFIITEEBIT ¢
Number of Weighted average

share options exercise price

BREZE R IITREE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-RF —TMWF ZB-RFf —TMOF
HK$ HKS
BT BT

Outstanding at 1 January K—R—BX11F 150,000,000 | 73,200,000 0.220
Granted [mEsin - | 29,000,000 | N/A FEH
Exercised BiTfE (14,800,000) |  (4,600,000) 0.199
Forfeited B2 (22,000,000) | (28,600,000) 0.277
Adjusted on share-subdivision  FEX A ¥ AR {E L FHEE - | 81,000,000 | N/A FiEF
Outstanding at 31 December HA+=A=+—BAK{1{F |113,200,000 | 150,000,000 0.212
Exercisable at 31 December WA +—=A=+—H#a]F77f#| 113,200,000 | 150,000,000 0.212
Notes: BaE -

0} The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the share options
were exercised is HK$0.349 (2014: HK$0.490, before share-
subdivision or HK$0.245, after share-subdivision).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) The exercise prices and expiry dates of share options under
the 2004 Scheme outstanding at the reporting date are as

29. R (&)

BfRE - (&)

(i) WHBEABRAITEZ -_TEN
FRBBETZBREZTEER

follows: JEm B EBT ¢
Expiry dates Number of share options Exercise price
& B A BIREHE TEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —E-NFE ZE-RF —ZNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
24/07/2016 —E—RFtA=+mA 60,000,000 | 70,800,000 0.183 0.183
20/06/2017 —E—+FA=+H 52,000,000 | 58,000,000 0.245 0.245
25/08/2021 T —F)\A=+EH 1,200,000 | 21,200,000 0.280 0.280
113,200,000 | 150,000,000

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share
options outstanding at 31 December 2015 is 1.0 years (2014:
2.6 years).

(i)  The number of share options outstanding at 31 December
2014 and their exercise price have been adjusted upon share-
subdivision which became effective on 30 December 2014.

R_ZE—RF+=-A=+—8"
M ARITIERE AR 2 I 82 T
AHHRAB1.0F (ZF—MNE :
2.6%F)

(i) RZFE—NF+=—A=+—HME
RITE 2 EREE B REITHEE
BN =T —NF+=—A=+H
Rz R TR ABVE L FAEE o
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

130

(b)

Pursuant to a special general meeting held on 15 October
2014, a new share option scheme (“2014 Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company in place
of the 2004 Scheme. The share options granted for the
2004 Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the 2004 Scheme.

The 2014 Scheme is also valid and effective for 10 years,
after which no further share options may be issued under the
2014 Scheme but any share options granted thereto shall
remain exercisable in accordance with the 2014 Scheme.
The purpose of the 2014 Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant share options to the Qualified Persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which can be granted
under the 2014 Scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. Pursuant
to a resolution passed on the annual general meeting of
the Company, dated 15 October 2014, the Company can
grant 161,201,291 share options to the Qualified Persons,
until the next time of refreshment. The maximum number of
shares which can be granted under the 2004 Scheme and
the 2014 Scheme may not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares issuable under the 2004 Scheme
and the 2014 Scheme to each Qualified Persons within
any 12-month’s period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval.

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to prior shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015

29. BRI (&)

(b)

RER TN+ A+RRASET
ZBRFRIRE - AATRREH#
IR B ([ =T —mF
8D AR - T EE - 5t
“TTEFEIR L 2 BRERE
—ETMEFEIDBER LA F1T
f&£ o

—T-MEFETR T FERERN
BYN HRXTEBRE-F
— PR IR L RRAE - A RT
BHZEMBEREDERE_-F
—FEEIAI FIT(E - —F—MF
AR EEARERABERALR
HEERE - EARESAREEEL
AR SR mR -

BB —OFETERER 2 kD
HE ST ERBARDBTED
TBRAZ10% ° IRIERARQE K
FEFAE FRBEBA-T
F+ATHEAZARRR - AARA
RTREFBERERMEERALT
& 161,201,291 (3 BB ARG #E - IR IE
—EENEHEI R T OFETE
REREZBNEBERZAHTSHE
BARNE)TEEETIRAZ30% °
BIEZTTOFHE R T —OF
SEIREMR+ =@ A R A [ &
BEBALTBITZ RO BETSE
BARAANGEREBEITIRAZ1%
R BB IR EE < AR
REJRLS AR BRBLE ©

R ER+ =18 A BiR AR A A 7
FERRIBILIFRTESHE
FZ A ABEALEE 2 TER
FERBIB AR B PMEI R E 21T
7 201% K BE(REARDF K
PR BRI T B E) B8
5,000,000 87T + AR R AL R
RE LBtk -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The exercise price in relation to each share option pursuant
to the 2014 Scheme shall be not less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date on which
the share option is offered to a Qualified Person; or (i) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; or (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company. There shall be no
minimum holding period for the vesting or exercise of the
share options under the 2014 Scheme but the share options
are exercisable within the option period as determined by the
board of directors of the Company.

No share options have been granted under the 2014
Scheme since its adoption.

On 19 June 2014, the Company and Rotaland Limited
(the “Consultant”) entered into a consultancy agreement
(the “Consultancy Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Company engaged the Consultant to provide marketing
and introduction services advice and guidance to support
the Group’s business expansion and development (the
“Consultancy Services”) for a fixed term of three years.

As consideration for the Consultancy Services, the Company
has, upon the signing of the Consultancy Agreement,
conditionally granted to the Consultant an option (the
“Option”), at a nominal consideration of HK$1.00, to
subscribe for 70,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company (“Option Shares”) at an
exercise price of HK$0.50 per Option Share (or 140,000,000
shares of HK$0.05 each at an exercise price of HK$0.25 per
Option Share after share-subdivision).

The Option is exercisable for 3 years from the date of
Consultancy Agreement. Vesting of the Option is conditional
upon the achievement of certain performance target by a
subsidiary of the Company.

29. RGBT (E)

(b)
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

()

132

(Continued) (©

Movements in Options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company under the Consultancy Agreement during the year
and the weighted average exercise price are as follows:

29. BB (E)

(&)

FAREBEE A RBEARR T
A BB 2 BB N 91T
EEMT

Weighted average

Number of Options exercise price

BRERE R TEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—B-RF —T-0NF ZB-RF _T-OF
HK$ HK$
B BT

. ______________________________________________|

Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BXRTE 140,000,000 = 0.25 | N/A TEMH
Granted BEH - | 70,000,000 | N/A FEH 0.50
Adjusted on share-subdivision  FLRX D #r 4R (E L % - | 70,000,000 | N/ATEA | N/ATEH
Outstanding at 31 December MA+=A=+—HAX{1{# |140,000,000 | 140,000,000 0.25 0.25
Exercisable at 31 December A+ =A=+—HAF77{F - - | NARER | NATEA

The number of Options outstanding at 31 December 2014
and their exercise price have been adjusted upon share-
subdivision which became effective on 30 December 2014.
The weighted average remaining contractual life of Options
outstanding at 31 December 2015 is 1.5 years (2014: 2.5
years).
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 29. RO (#2)

The fair values of the Option granted to the Consultant on
19 June 2014 and share options granted to certain directors of
the Company and employees of the Group on 20 June 2014 were
HK$7,578,000 and HK$4,218,000, respectively. The fair values
were estimated at the date of grant, using Binomial Option Pricing
Model. The following assumptions were used to calculate their fair
values:

R-ZTF—OFANATNABRERRLZ
BRERKR-_Z-—NFEA-+HBAR
NRAETEERAEERERL 2B
Mt 2 N FE S Bl 477,578,000 7T &
4,218,000/ 7T - AFERKEE A HER
A=A B ERAETAET - Bt
HHEAYE DEATIIRE :

19/06/2014 20/06/2014

—E-mF —E—NF

Assumptions R AAt+HA AA=+H
Grant date share price b qanl=R-C i

(before share-subdivision) (R HF48AT) HK$0.450 HK$0.490

0.450/8 7T 0.49078 7T

Exercise price (before share-subdivision) — 1T{#(8 (A H 40 AT) HK$0.500 HK$0.490

0.5007& 7T 0.4907& 7T

Expected life T8 HAF B 3 years 3 years

3F 34

Expected volatility TEHR I8 55.491% 55.287%

Dividend yield RE= 0% 0%

Risk-free interest rate R e B 0.730% 0.803%

The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. Expected
volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company'’s share price over the previous three years.

No equity-settled share-based payment expense was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Group recognised
equity-settled share-based payment expense of HK$4,218,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2014 under staff costs. No liabilities
were recognised as these were all equity-settled share-based
payment transactions.

BLMABRNFHERBEREB I RIE
BRI RN - TTERH RITAE
R FEBFELRAE - AHEKEIMERAR
RABERNBE=F2ELKIBETE

BE_T—AF+_A=+—RHILF
JE - I ERERR A B AN 4 B R 5 KB
XeBE_T-NME+_A=t+—Hit
FE  AEERIEE TRARERRALE
IR {4 P X 54,218,000 7T ° B
REZF N R B E BB R
5 - B EEREMALE
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30.

134

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THOURGH ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

There was no acquisition of subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2015. The Company entered into the agreement
dated 11 September 2014 (“Acquisition Agreement”) with World
Tycoon Limited (the “Vendor”), an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase and the
Vendor agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Regington
International Limited (“Regington”), which indirectly owns 24.975%
of the equity interests in XHME, at the consideration of up to
HK$194,805,000 (the “Consideration”).

The Consideration as to HK$58,441,500 was paid to the Vendor
by way of the allotment and issue of 119,268,367 shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company within 14 days after completion of
the Acquisition Agreement (“Completion”); and HK$136,363,500
would be payable to the Vendor by way of the allotment and
issue of 278,292,857 shares of HK$0.10 each (or 556,585,714
shares of HK$0.05 each after share-subdivision) in the Company
within 14 days when XHME have recorded audited consolidated
net profit before income tax in the amount of HK$50,000,000
(“Profit Target”) on any day within 365 days from the Completion
(“Profit Target Period”). In the event that the Profit Target could
not be fulfilled during the Profit Target Period, the Company
is not required to pay the second payment in the amount of
HK$136,363,500 accordingly.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the acquisition did
not constitute a business combination in accordance with HKFRS
3 (Revised), Business Combination, as the major underlying assets
acquired are 24.975% of the equity interests in XHME and related
assets and liabilities in Regington and its subsidiaries (“Regington
Group”). Therefore, the acquisition has been accounted for as
an acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of a
subsidiary.
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30. ZBWE—RHNBEATRKBEE
REE#E)

30. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THOURGH ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

B LR B RBEEFE  KE
mE MR RAFEFBRANT

Details of the net assets acquired, the total consideration and
the net cash inflow in respect of the above transaction are
summarised below:

Notes HK$'000
BosE FAT
Net assets acquired: EWBEETE
Property, plant and equipment 1 E N 18
Interest in an associate REFE R R 2 R 93,564
Other receivables H {th FE U AR R 241
Cash and cash equivalents e kRE&EREE 339
Other payables E M AR R (17,292)
76,870
Less: Non-controlling interests W IR (12)
76,858
Consideration: RME :
119,268,367 shares of HK$0.10 each in RA7] 119,268,367 %
the Company FRXEEO0.10/8 T 2 fp (@) 62,020
Contingently issuable shares in the Company ARAR A FEIT 2D (o) 28,943
Directly attributable transaction costs BEEERSKA 1,194
92,157
Less: Indemnification asset B REEE (©) (15,299)
Total consideration KB 76,858
Net cash inflow: HERAFE -
Balance of cash and cash equivalents acquired ~ BB G KIS ERIER &% 339
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30. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)  The fair value of the 119,268,367 shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company issued as part of the Consideration was based on the
published share price on date of Completion.

(b)  The fair value of the contingently issuable shares in the Company
was estimated by income approach. The fair value estimates are
based on the probability weighted number of consideration shares
to be issued by the Company. The key assumptions are as follows:

Forecasted net profit before income tax of

30. ZBWE—RBHNBELATIRBEE
rE& @)

@ ArARIXNIFIREBETZ
119,268,367 IR AR EE 0.10 B TT Z AR
D2 AFETDERTERRRRMZK
EETHE -

b) ARRATFTERTZEOOAFETE
R EEE TR o Bt R FEDR
BARBKTEITZRERD Z T8
IEHBFE - T2EBAOT

Regington & BI788] 2 A A1 B 12 5

Regington Group for the Profit Target Period Z RS BRTR R A HK$57,493,000
57,493,000 T
Estimated probability T AT RE 1 20%
Share price of the Company ARBIZIRE HK$0.52
(before share-subdivision) (Btr Hr4ERT) 0.52% 7T
()  Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, Regington Group does ) WBEREKEHZ REEEBEELEZE

not have any liabilities other than those arising from the normal
operations and the Vendor have contractually agreed to indemnify
the Group for these liabilities, if any. Regington Group had recorded
an amount of HK$15,299,000 in “Other payables” as liabilities
upon the Completion and the Vendor had agreed to assign these
payables to them pursuant to agreements entered into during
December 2014 (“Debt Transfer Agreements”). An indemnification
asset of HK$15,299,000, equivalent to the fair value of the
indemnified liabilities, has therefore been recognised by the Group
upon Completion. The indemnification asset is deducted from the
Consideration on Completion and was offset against the indemnified
liabilities upon signing of the Debt Transfer Agreements.
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31. RESERVES 31. &

SHARE PREMIUM

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company may be credited to a
contributed surplus account of the Company. Such contributed
surplus, may be distributed when the Company is able to settle its
liabilities when they fall due after such payment.

SHAREHOLDER’S CONTRIBUTION

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 20 April 2007
between the Company and Prime Sun Group Limited (“Prime
Sun”) and Grand Promise Enterprise Limited (“Grand Promise”)
and the sales and purchase agreement dated 20 April 2007
for the sales of shares and convertible bonds of the Company
entered between Fine Assets Limited (“Fine Assets”), HK Sky
Entertainment Holdings Limited, Prime Sun and Grand Promise;
Fine Assets agreed to (i) sell its entire interest in the Company to
Prime Sun and (i) receive HK$45,000,000 as the full settlement for
the borrowing due by the Company amounted to HK$52,834,000.
Accordingly, the amount waived by Fine Assets amounted
to HK$7,834,000 was accounted for as a contribution from
the former shareholder and credited directly to shareholder’s
contribution.

CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Capital redemption reserve was arising from the repurchase and
cancelled of 47,720,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each during
the year ended 30 April 2001.

MRAD = E
BRE-NN—FBREQRE ARF
B s BRE ST ARRBIBAR
FRER o WA R BN MRE B BRI HE
EEEEAE  AZEABRBRA THIK

BEIFE

R #5 7K A &) » Prime Sun Group Limited
(TPrime Sunl) X} Grand Promise
Enterprise Limited ([ Grand Promise )
R-BEE+EMA-+HIT I RE
% %' MFine Assets Limited ([Fine
Assets|) » KPR LEBHFR QA
Prime Sun } Grand Promise 7t i & 7
RNAEIRGH KA BRBRESFR ST LFN
A=+ B3Iz 2 BEE W=  Fine Assets
[B & () [ Prime SuntH EHER AR A 2
bR ()RR R RIER ZIEEBE
52,834,000 7T 4 BX45,000,000/8 7T
TERZEUEN - ALt * Fine Assets ¥ ®
2 &% 47,834,000 5T - B ABKRSIE
REMBRRZEE - WEHETAREE
% 7 B B % 48
BABLDFEEEREEZE_ZET—FWNA

=tRLEFERDEEHENEREE
0.017#7T.2 47,720,000 A& & AR °
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31.
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RESERVES (Continued)
CONVERTIBLE BOND EQUITY RESERVE

Convertible bond equity reserve represents the equity component
of SYHL Bonds issued in 2014 which had not been converted into
ordinary shares of the Company.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RESERVE

Contingent consideration reserve represents the remaining balance
of the Consideration for the acquisition of Regington that might be
satisfied by way of allotment and issue of 556,585,714 shares of
HK$0.05 each by the Company if the Profit Target set out in the
Acquisition Agreement (note 30) has been fulfilled. As the Profit
Target has not been fulfilled during the Profit Target Period, the
contingent consideration reserve was transferred to accumulated
losses in 2015.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

Share option reserve represents the portion of the grant date fair
value of the unexercised share options of the Company.

CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

Currency translation reserve of the Group represents all the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations from their functional currencies to
the Group’s presentation currency.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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32. COMMITMENTS
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, in respect of land and
buildings, are payable as follows:

32.

iR

REHNARE
WNREBE - ARERETATHBEE
RO RETRRERRRERE
FORMEELT :

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Within one year —FR 6,730 6,921
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEERT(RREEERT) 234 3,872
6,964 10,793

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of 1 to 3 years (2014: 1 to 3
years). None of the leases include contingent rentals.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

At the reporting date, the total future minimum service fee
payment under non-cancellable service agreements are payable

AEBERELEHOEEZRY X - H
WIEBR A —Z2=F(_F—HF:
—E=%F) - EENEEIAES -

HAdE

RiE B - AN ERE A BB RS
W RS 2 R R KERTS B RN

as follows: T

2015 2014
—®B-&F —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 2,022 64
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF (BREEEWE) 1,733 =
3,755 64
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR

33. BEAEIRZREERARS &
BERENh 2 ERER

CONTRACTS
In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in bRz 50 ﬂ‘xﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁf@H?LZX%&
these financial statements, the Group had the following material BRI AEBRFANEBEALTE
transactions with related parties during the year: LEARGIAT :
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—JUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Mr. Wu Siu Lam, William A FRIAE
— Commission and brokerage income - BER G2 BE REHLKA
from securities dealing 13 3
Ms. Cheng Kit Sum, Clara EOR 2k
— Commission and brokerage income - BHER G2 e RELBWA
from securities dealing 3 -
Front Riches Investments Limited (note 1)  #EEREGR A7 (HzE1)
— Interest expense - F B - 314
Sheng Yuan China Growth Fund (note 2)  Sheng Yuan China Growth Fund
(Ktzx2)
— Fund management fee income - ESEEBIRA - 885
Notes: PiiEE
1. Front Riches Investments Limited is a company in which Mr. Hu 1. HMEREEREERESRATRESE

Yishi has controlling interests. Mr. Hu Yishi is the spouse of Ms. Lin
Min, an executive director of the Company until her retirement on

25 April 2014.

2. Sheng Yuan China Growth Fund (“SYCGF”) was an investment fund 2.
in which Ms. Lin Min and Mr. Hu Yishi held 92% of its participating
shares until these shares were redeemed in July 2014. The
maximum outstanding balance due from SYCGF during the year
ended 31 December 2014 was HK$5,628,000 and the Group did
not have any balance due from SYCGF at 31 December 2015 and

2014.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 3. BEALIRFRESBENARS &
DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN BERENP 2ERES (&)
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS (Continued)

Except as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements Br ENFTIREEIN RO FEEEER
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to S HIE - EEASEER(NAFR
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the EF—H)BHE BEARRESFEREH
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, BEENFAEREEAER ZEMR S -
subsisted during or at the end of the financial year. LTHEKERAEH ©
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL FEEHEE AS SN
2015 2014
—E-hF —FTmE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Short-term employee benefits HEEERF 4,694 7,339
Post-employment benefits RIKEF 215 188
Share-based payment LARRAD BERRE R 3R - 1,428
4,909 8,955
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34. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 34. RERES2ERMEEREEH

142

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY =
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities AEERBREAHERCEREENRE
as recognised at the reporting dates are categorised as follows: BERREESENT :
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#BxT THIT
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at fair value through BATESABRZEREE
profit or loss (classified as (DBRRIHIEEE)
held for trading)
— Held for trading investments - FIEEERBRE 184,304 71,958
— Derivative financial instruments -PTESRMT A 3,667 2,121
187,971 74,079
Loans and receivables B EUWER TR
— Other assets -HEh&EE 1,730 1,730
— Trade receivables - B SRR 286,592 244,526
— Other receivables — Hh FEUS AR R 2,405 3,996
— Amount due from an associate - FEU—FRBSE N R FIE - 6

— Trust bank balances held on

- REFPHABZERRITER

behalf of clients 51,381 10,542
— Cash and cash equivalents -Re KRESERIEH 60,536 94,467
402,644 355,267
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE - 100
590,615 429,446
Financial liabilities cREaE
Financial liabilities at fair value through BATFEFAERZSRBE
profit or loss (classified as (DERBFIEER)
held for trading)
— Derivative financial instruments - PTESRIT A - 203
- 203
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBHERAARZ S RBE
- Trade and other payables and accruals - & 5 N E B BR A K
JEEtE A 117,030 22,717
- Borrowings -85 222 314 154,924
— Obligations under finance leases - BB A R - 32
— Convertible bonds - AR ES 148,462 133,900
487,806 311,573
487,806 311,776
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed in note
34. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these risks to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

MARKET RISK
(A) CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, borrowings
and cash balances that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
RMB and US$.

To manage the currency risk, the Group ensures that the net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances. The Group may also uses foreign
exchange forward contracts to minimise its currency risk
exposure, except for those transactions denominated in US$
which are, or are expected to be, entered into by operations
with a functional currency of HK$. No foreign exchange
forward contracts are entered for these transactions as
the Group considers the risk of changes in exchange rates
between HK$ and US$ to be insignificant.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had foreign exchange
forward contracts with a net fair value of HK$640,000 which
was recognised as derivative financial instruments (note 22).
All of the foreign exchange forward contracts have maturities
of less than one year. At 31 December 2015, the Group
did not have any outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts.

35.

MHEREEBEZERBE

AEBTZERMITARBENRITES - &
FLRMTAZHRBERRKEEREZE
Bz BRENR T - BEBEERE
ZERE - ERER REBUREUE

B

™5 Rk
(A) EEERE

AEEEEC EERREEREE
ERMWERR - BE MRS AR (A
RHEBEBHNEEBIAINT BT
B)Z2EE ELXUERZEES
ARBRZETT

RERERRAR  AEBFEBENS
ERRAEERE AL E L HE
HIR BOIME - HERE R FRERE
ARSKF » REE TS MBINE

BZRXPHRI  ZFERHRHAH
RUNBEEERBITZEHIIL)
AREBER QB THRITTE RSB
BREN - BALER U FRFHFI LI
EERHIGH o

N-ZE—NE+—_A=+—0 " K
SEVNERBIG O AT EFER
640,000/87C + BRERAITESH
THE(KEE22) - IAENEEREE
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. B REKREEBEREEK &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued) miEE K (&)
(A) CURRENCY RISK (Continued) (A) EBEHEE(E)
The following table details the Group’s financial assets and TRFINAEERREHAEEER
liabilities denominated in currencies, other than the functional LAERE B e B IIINE R EHE
currency of the entities to which they relate, at the end of the JeBMEERERAE
reporting period:
Expressed in HK$
LETES
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—MF
uUs$ RMB USs$ RMB
x5 AR =TT AR
$’000 $’000 $'000 $°000
T T Tt Tt
Trade receivables B S EWERTK - 224,024 = 156,259
Trust bank balances REEFPEHEZ
held on behalf of clients EFLIRITAEER 20 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents & MIR&ZERIEE 1,000 3,599 741 4,089
Trade payables B SRR (20) - = =
Borrowings ey - (222,314)| (117,085)  (37,839)
1,000 5,309 (116,344) 122,509
Notional amounts of HNERFIE B E
foreign exchange k]
forward contracts - - 118,306 (122,168)
Net exposure [B\Be % 58 1,000 5,309 1,962 341

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s loss for the year (and accumulated losses) and
other components of consolidated equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
reporting period. In this respect, the Group does not expect
any significant changes in US$/HK$ exchange rates as US$
is pegged to HKS.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

35.

MERREEEERBE#E)

MARKET RISK (Continued) miEREkE (&)
(A) CURRENCY RISK (Continued) (A) EHEE(E)

A positive number below indicates a decrease in loss (and
accumulated losses) for the year. For an increase in loss (and
accumulated losses) for the year, the balances below would

TREFBRTFAER (MR
BB - WEREBBR(MRE
/) BITREBERSRH -

be negative.
Increase in RMB Decrease in RMB
against HKS$ by 2% against HK$ by 2%
ARBRBTAE2% ARBRBTRE2%
Effect on Effect on
loss for Effect on loss for Effect on
the year and other the year and other
accumulated components accumulated components
losses of equity losses of equity
HERNBE Hign HEREE Hign
REHER HitHs RISER Hit ¥ 2
£2 A7 228 £2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TET
2015 S TS 106 - (106) -
2014 —E—mEF 2,224 - (2,073) -

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange
rates over the period until the next annual reporting date.
In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

FREBEEREHRES TEF
B RLE R ER AT
BB - ERERA B
EAMETREBESEEAR - T)
R B B B 2 BB TR
RRERER -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)
(B) INTEREST RATE RISK

146

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to borrowings (note 26), obligations under finance leases and
convertible bonds (note 27) issued at fixed rates. The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate financial assets of amounts due from cash and
margin clients (note 20) and bank balances (notes 23 and
24) and borrowings issued at variable rates (note 26).

To manage the interest rate risk, the Group may use interest
rate swaps to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed and
floating rate exposure consistent with the Group’s policy.
At 31 December 2014, the Group had interest rate swaps
with a net fair value of HK$203,000 which was recognised
as derivative financial instruments (note 22). All of the
interest rate swaps have maturities of less than one year. At
31 December 2015, the Group did not have any outstanding
interest rate swaps.

At 31 December 2015, if interest rates had increased by
2% (2014: 2%) while all other variables were held constant,
the loss for the year would decrease by approximately
HK$1,995,000 (2014: increase in loss by approximately
HK$318,000) and there would be a corresponding change
in accumulated losses. If interest rates had decreased by
2% (2014: 2%) while all other variables were held constant,
the loss for the year would increase by approximately
HK$1,981,000 (2014: decrease in loss by approximately
HK$321,000) and there would be a corresponding change in
accumulated losses. Other components of the consolidated
equity would remain unchanged.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)

(B)

(€

INTEREST RATE RISK (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the analysis is prepared by assuming these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year.

EQUITY PRICE RISK

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities and investment funds
classified as held for trading investments (note 21). The
Group’s equity securities are listed on the Stock Exchange
and Shenzhen Stock Exchange while investment funds
invest primarily in companies listed in Hong Kong and
China Region. Decisions to buy and sell are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual securities and
investment funds as well as the liquidity needs.

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from
changes in the Company’s own share price to the extent
that the Company’s own equity instruments underlie the fair
values of derivatives or other financial liabilities of the Group.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group is exposed to
this risk through the equity-linked interest payments attached
to the SYHL Bonds as disclosed in note 27 to these financial
statements.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)
(C) EQUITY PRICE RISK (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, if relevant equity prices had
increased by 10% (2014: 20%) while all other variables
were held constant, the loss for the year would decrease
by approximately HK$19,054,000 (2014: decrease in loss
by approximately HK$14,801,000) and there would be a
corresponding change in accumulated losses. If relevant
equity prices has decreased by 10% (2014: 20%) while all
other variables were held constant, the loss for the year
would increase by approximately HK$19,436,000 (2014:
increase in loss by approximately HK$14,754,000) and there
would be a corresponding change in accumulated losses.
Other components of the consolidated equity would remain
unchanged.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by assuming
that the changes in equity price had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and has been applied to those
instruments which expose the Group to equity price risk
at that date. In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent equity price risk
as the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

CREDIT RISK

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BiiREMREEEERBE &)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The management closely monitors
the subsequent settlement of the debts and does not grant long
credit period to new customers. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on trade
receivables is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The credit risk on other assets is limited because
the counterparties are regulated entities.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each counterparty rather than
the geographical area or industry and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual counterparties. At 31 December
2015, the Group had concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as 78% (2014: 64%) of the balance was due from a
trade customer, which is arising from the trading business. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 20 to these
financial statements.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in
meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

FERRE#)

REEREEZEREEREERR - &
SEEEEEZREREKATETRE
ERE  EEMELEMEERERF - A
FERIRERBRE TR R BB AR IR - B3
BRUEEEHERBERR - AR
ERTHEPREEH - ARAEFR
R BT ARBEAEEZE S EK
RREERR -

BHREF I SEBRREEFRARES
SERMRTT - AtbR#EHEREE
ERBRER - AHFHARREETER
B RHEMEEZEERRBR -

o

AEEFMEH FERBREEZSHF
B2 BRSEBEF R E  MIEZHIBMAE
HITEMTE  Bit - A5BEREF
CERBRTIERAEBENEF 2B
AEBMELE - R-_ZTE—RHF+_- A
=+—H BAREBEZEBBRETELY
78% (ZZ—U4F : 64%) 58 BEIN—
ZESRPZHE  MAEEEFHEW
EREBRETEERR - BEASEER
2 ZRWEFEERRFTARERR &
— P EMBERZEMBEHREME20H
& -

RBE R
MBELRRIEARERTEEBRIN
AeHMeRMEEAE CERARR
Mz EEREENE AR - AEE
ERVHFEEER/RENBNAEH
SEMBREMESEFRBANKFE - XL
BERERSRENBD 2FE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BiiREMREEEERBE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) RBESER(Z)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities TRAVENTESRBERITESRE
for its non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial BB TERINEER - ZKRIERASE
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted BRI ER Mz RERHERAE
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on ZAFRBERERR - REEWKEER
which the Group can be required to pay. The undiscounted cash BREMNERETEMK

flows include both interest and principal payments.

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Less than 6 months 2to5
amount cash flow 6 months to 1 year years
BRRER

RHE ReR#E IRAER AERAE-F WMERLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TER

At 31 December 2015 R-E-51F
+=A=t+-H
Trade and other payables B AR EMEIRR
and accruals MR FERTE R 117,030 117,030 117,030 - -
Borrowings - 222,314 224,024 224,024 - -
Convertible bonds ARk ES 148,462 201,600 - 10,800 190,800
487,806 542,654 341,054 10,800 190,800
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HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. i EREEBERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) RBESER(Z)
Total
contractual
Carrying  undiscounted Less than 6 months 2t05
amount cash flow 6 months to 1 year years
BHRIREH
REE HenesE  SRAER SEAERF MERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FHT FH
. _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME
+=ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRR
and accruals Rt ER 22,7117 22,717 22,717 - -
Borrowings Y 154,924 155,961 37,839 118,122 =
Obligations under BEMAAE
finance leases 32 32 19 13 -
Convertible bonds RRES 133,900 212,400 - 10,800 201,600
Derivative financial instruments, {74 ¢RI A -
net settled - Interest rate TSR
swaps - Fi|Z= 203 191 = 191 =
311,776 391,301 60,575 129,126 201,600
Derivative financial instruments, {74 &I A -
gross settled - foreign BEsE
exchange forward contracts - INEEEBEH
- inflow -mA = 118,306 = 118,306 -
- outflow - - 122,168 - 122,168 -
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36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 36. AF{EEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE BAVEFFEZSmTAE

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments TRENAEEREBEAFESZRHER
measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated RE MR KR ABRELER N ER
statement of financial position according to the fair value hierarchy. ECeRMIT A ZERHEREZSTS
The hierarchy groups financial instruments into three levels based BMTAEZAVEFEMEAZEZGHA
on the relative reliability of significant inputs used in measuring the BEZzHEBAEE BeBI A R=
fair value of these financial instruments. The fair value hierarchy s RESERFIESEBAT

has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical F—H: AIRREEXBERNEGRETS
assets or liabilities; ZIRE (CREFARE)

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level FE: BEESBEEEZ (AER)HE
1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either % (BMBIRITA) ATEIR 28 A
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from B F—EBEZHERIN:
prices); and 53

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on F=H: EEXBRLIFRBEAIHEET
observable market data (unobservable inputs). GEB 2B AB(TAERE

AB)FE -
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HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)

36. AVEE@E)

BRAVEFEZERIA®)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—& FZR E #mst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(fffzE @)  (PFsE®)  (FiIEE(c)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—HF
+=ZHA=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BATFEFAER
through profit or loss L EREE
— Listed equity securities - FTRAE S 17,173 - - 17,173
— Unlisted investment funds —JEETIREES - - 167,131 167,131
— Derivative component of - BRI E S
SYHL Bonds ZOTHET RIS - - 3,667 3,667
17,173 - 170,798 187,971
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—IF
+=RA=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAER
through profit or loss ZEREE
— Listed equity securities - FTIRAE S 51,652 = = 51,652
— Unlisted investment funds -ELmREES - - 20,306 20,306
— Derivative component of - BRI E A
SYHL Bonds ZITETAHS - = 1,481 1,481
— Foreign exchange - SN R HAE 4
forward contracts = 640 = 640
Financial liabilities at fair value A A AB
through profit or loss ZERAE
— Interest rate swaps —Fl| =45 55 - (2098) - (203)
51,652 437 21,787 73,876
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HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)

The levels in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
instruments are categorised in its entirety are based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 or transfers into
or out of level 3 in the reporting periods. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

154

(A)

(B)

(€)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 1

The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on the
quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted
market price used for the listed equity securities held by the
Group is the current bid price.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 2

The fair value of the foreign exchange forward contracts is
determined by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate. The fair value of the interest
rate swap is determined based on the estimated future cash
flows discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of the
counterparties.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 3
Unlisted investment funds

The fair value is determined with reference to the reported
net asset value of the investment funds. Generally, a
change in the net asset value of the investment fund is
accompanied by a directionally similar change to the fair
value measurement. It is estimated that a 10% (2014: 10%)
increase/decrease in the net asset value of the investment
funds at 31 December 2015 would increase/decrease the
carrying amount of the investment funds by approximately
HK$16,713,000 (2014: HK$2,031,000), while all other
variables held constant.
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6. AV EFTE (@)

BRAVEFEZSHMIAE)
RHEERHE D BTHERE R FEF
EMEBEENH AENRERER - %
DEHER T AETERDIE - KRS
A F—REE R MW EER
SR AEEANE L - NEENEK
RENBEEBNEAHBERELER
HERRFER 2 FNEE -

(A) F—RPHELHTA
ERBRAES 2 A FEDENRES
Bz mERERL - AKEFE
Z EMRAE SRR 2 TSR E
RBITHZEAE -

(B) F=RTHIZMTA
SNERHG K 2 DT ETERTE
BAREHER MBI E R
E o MZIgHZ DR TR R
SEF I 2 EERBRZ MR IRE

AAARRREREERE °

(C) EFE=FFHEMITE
FELTMBRER D
AREEELED2RIEBEES
ZEEFEETE - —MmE  8E
EeBEFEZEHSERATFE
SFTELEEUSRES - BibET -
EABEEMEARTEZERT @ 88
EenN=-_ZT—hHF+=-A=1+—8H
ZEEFEENEL10% (ZF
—MF 10%) B EEBIREES
Z BREER I, R4 #916,713,000
B (ZZF — 4 : 2,031,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—RILtEE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 36. AV{EFTE#E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued) BEATEFEZEMTIAE)
(C) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 3 (Continued) (C) FE=RHpzmTAE)
Unlisted investment funds (Continued) FLMEERD (&)
The reconciliation from the opening to the closing balances s B9 B HAAR 2 SRR AR AT ¢

during the reporting periods is as follows:

2015 2014
—EB-hfF —FT-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
At 1 January n—HA—H 20,306 =
Payments for purchases MEENK 146,088 20,000
Proceeds from sales HEMSFIIE (25,901) =
Changes in fair value recognised in =~ B4 AERZ
“Other gains and losses” in [ B REE] A
consolidated profit or loss BRZ AN FEEE
— Realised gains or losses - BRI 10,189 306
— Unrealised gains or losses - AR W Rk E R 16,449 .
26,638 306
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 167,131 20,306
Derivative component embedded in SYHL Bonds BRIERIESNEZITETAS
jj\
The fair value is determined using Binomial Option Pricing ANHEERAZIEA A EEED
Mode. The reconciliation from the opening to the closing EETE o M BRI BB R 2 BT AR
balances during the reporting periods and significant RATEFEFHEANERTAIE
unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement are Rig AMER BN Z SV RERM T
disclosed in note 27 to these financial statements. 27 °
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36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (Continued)

(C) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN LEVEL 3 (Continued)

156

Derivative component embedded in SYHL Bonds
(Continued)

Generally, a change in the Company’s share price and
volatility is accompanied by a directionally similar change to
the fair value measurement whilst a change in the risk-free
rate is accompanied by a directionally opposite change to
the fair value measurement. The following table illustrates the
sensitivity of the carrying amount of the derivative component
embedded in SYHL bonds at 31 December 2015 and 2014
to a change in the significant unobservable inputs while
all other variable held constant. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in loss (and accumulated losses) for the
year. For an increase in loss (and accumulated losses) for the
year, the balances below would be negative.

36. AV EE@E)
BRAVEFEZSHMIAE)

©)

F=ZRPH M ITE(E)
BEERESFA S Z1TLET A
7 (&)

—RME - NRBRE MR R &
BEEHAFEFELRBLULR

RAFHEAELRRTAEE - T
KA BERIEREZFAZZTET
AHAN_FT-—AFR_F—WF
tZA=+—RZKEE " EME
R HERTEER THEATAE

FRFEREER(RRAER) KD
i F R E (R RETEE) B
ANKRBEERRAH -

2015 2014
=F-HF —FT0F

If higher If lower If higher If lower

fisl £EF i T Bk fis £+ NS

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET FAT FATT
+/- 10% (2014: 20%) in  ANABIRAE_LF, TE10%

Company’s share price  (ZZ—PH4F : 20%) 624 (1,006) 409 (362)

+/- 20% (2014: 20%) in K18 _EFH T % 20%

volatility (ZZ—I4 : 20%) 1,167 (1,284) 1,356 (259)
+/- 2% (2014: 2%)in  EEBRFEEFH TH2%

risk-free rate ZE—POF : 2%) (303) 317 (267) 270
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost under current assets and current liabilities,
respectively, are not materially different from their carrying amount
as they are all short term in nature.

The fair values and the carrying amount of the financial instruments
of the Group, other than those whose carrying amount reasonably
be approximate to their fair value, are as follows:

36. AVEE@E)

BREBERATTECSRMTE
RBEE MR EE NMEEEA AR A
ResRBEERSRABEYAREN K
ERAFEEEXARABETEEAE
Al

AEEeRTA(RREREQFES
BHAOMEZ 2R ITAERIN R FER
FREEWT :

Carrying amount Fair value
AREE AE¥E
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —_T-NF ZB-HF _—_TNOF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAETT FHERT FET
Financial liabilities TRAE
Liability component of AMREFEaEE D
convertible bonds
- SYFS Bonds - SYFS&H 35,249 29,813 35,046 29,525
— SYHL Bonds - BRERES 113,213 104,087 114,880 99,315
148,462 133,900 149,926 128,840

The liability component of the convertible bonds are categorised
under level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Their fair values are
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using an
equivalent market interest rate for a similar convertible bond with
consideration of the Group’s own non-performance risk.

AR ES AEHD DIRBATES
BHEE=R0E - HAFELF A
SEBFTREAORRR - SRAALU®R
PR A& 75 2 [ 35 T 45 7 R 35 T8 B R 2R 3R
SMEEITHE ©
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37. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. EHcmEERSREE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

AEE B AT EBEERBBMITHERN - A
HIHREBEE A FREERET
R W UL Ko FEAST BRI 2 SRIRATE - B
BRI FRE IR EE M E
ZRBARKHE MR - BLAFER
REE R R R R B R SR B N AR AR
VA B L At B MK K FE A5 AR R (AN B At & B2
RNZRE) < RBAEFEMS @ A
REFHCHERSRERBOFHELR
FRRHITT - AAKE AR RE
RERER - WHARRRL TR AR
BB HREE IR o

The tables below set out the financial assets and liabilities subject W RIS - FIRBIITEERIHTHE R
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement and similar HULH 2 eREERBEBEHINT
arrangements: *

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivables
and payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis
as trade receivables from or trade payables to HKSCC. For the
net amounts of CNS money obligations receivables or payables
and other receivables and payables (such as deposits included
under other assets), they do not meet the criteria for offsetting in
the consolidated financial statements since the right to set-off of
the recognised amount is only enforceable following an event of
default and the Group does not intended to settle the balance on
a net basis.

Amount due from HKSCC

158

EWEBEERE
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FH&T T
Financial assets cMEE
Gross amount of recognised DR EERTE
financial assets 32,543 8,988
Gross amount of recognised RERE AR R IE
financial liabilities offset in the ZEERTHEEER
consolidated statement of
financial position (1,502) (4,686)
Net amounts of financial assets included  H A4EA BMEIARE
in the consolidated statement of ZEMEETFE
financial position 31,041 4,302
Related amount not set off in the RIERE B AR R 3K 8
consolidated statement of Z NBEARIR
financial position
— financial instruments -E®MITA - -
— financial collaterals - SRR - -
Net amounts FEE 31,041 4,302
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HEZ

37.

T-HF+-AS+—AILFE

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. BEHcREERERMEBEH)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Amount due to HKSCC

ENEBEERIE
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—JUF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Financial liabilities sRIEE
Gross amount of recognised EERcRBERS
financial liabilities 1,502 4,686
Gross amount of recognised ERE MSAR R 8
financial assets offset in the ZEEReREELTE
consolidated statement of
financial position (1,502) (4,686)
Net amounts of financial liabilities included  5F A4R4& BT R KR
in the consolidated statement of B EFE
financial position - =
Related amount not set off in the RINERE SRR R 85
consolidated statement of Z FHRAFIE
financial position
— financial instruments -E@ITA - -
— financial collaterals - R o - =
Net amounts R - =
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HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

37. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

The table below reconciles the “Net amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities included in the consolidated statement of
financial position” as set out above to line items in the consolidated

statement of financial position:

TREH EX[FFALRE

37. KEEETHEEREBMABE @)

IR R Z

TREELASRAEFRE]| BEEMK

AONKFTFIAE 2 $8k

2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—JUF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Trade and other receivables and B RHEMEBERERRUAR
prepayments A FIE
Net amounts of financial assets included T A4RA AN K
in the consolidated statement of L EMEETRE
financial position 31,041 4,302
Amount not within the scope of E IR R E E SN KRIE
offsetting disclosure 260,189 245,650
Trade and other receivables and REPBARRKZT
prepayments presented in the 2B 5 N H A FEU AR TR
consolidated statement of LA K FE A~ 5RI8
financial position 291,230 249,952
Trade and other payables and accruals E 3 K& HfhfE{FBRF AR
FEETEH
Net amounts of financial liabilities included & A4R& B FSAR LR
in the consolidated statement of ZERBETE
financial position - -
Amount not within the scope of B IH R PR S E SN RIE
offsetting disclosure 117,030 22,717
Trade and other payables and accruals REMIEIRR K27
presented in the consolidated 2B 5 KR EMERIRNK
statement of financial position AR EETE A 117,030 22,717
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BE

38.

—E-AF+-_A=+—HItFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which mainly
includes borrowings and convertible bonds as disclosed in notes
26 and 27 respectively and total assets of the Group.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the issuance of new shares and
the addition of new borrowings.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission and are required to comply with the financial
resources requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The Group’s
regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up share capital
requirements and liquid capital requirements under the SF(FR)R.
Management closely monitors, on a daily basis, the liquid capital
level of these entities to ensure compliance with the minimum liquid
capital requirements under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated
entities have complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SF(FR)R throughout the year.

38. EXERE

AEBHEENETER - UERAS
B R SRR L S R B BB LA
BEBRREHmEA - B E—FE
REBERBREL ELH) -

AEBEAREHES (TBRIEEE
KA E S - o B R 26 &
27) ARG E B EBTRANK o

ARAAEEREELSELARBE - BE
T EREEEARKARIAKLEAREREE
- ENEEFHHERSZ  A5H
KB BEITHIR SR N E R P EE
BEANRE

EREXAERF M EEHE
RLEQET  ARBHFERF MG
(M BER) R ESRBE (M BE
BB D ETHBERRTE - NEE
XEEERAETES B (MRE
IR R AITE TR ERARTE RRE
BARTE  ERETHBYEIEZTE
BIZRBEARNKYF - LERTEESFK
HE (MBER) RUBTHERBERN
ME - AREXETEERNEEAFERE
BrEm s (MEER) RRAMEMNZ
BARRE °

%:F

5& A

m

E
\/Ewm
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38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 38. EXEE (#)
The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is AEBRBTAENABLRERASR
total debts divided by total assets. The Group aims to maintain K BRBELEREREEREES
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratio at the o AEEEERERNABLEERE
reporting dates is as follows: BEKE - RERMzEEABLE
I
2015 2014
—E-5fF —ZE—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Borrowings BE 222,314 154,924
Obligations under finance leases BhE M A EE - 32
Convertible bonds AR E S 148,462 133,900
Total debts Ei5saEE 370,776 288,856
Total non-current assets EMBNEEBTE 83,710 100,686
Total current assets MENEERRR 587,451 427,715
Total assets BEMERE 671,161 528,401
Gearing ratio BEAXREELE 55% 55%
39. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 39. BEAARRMBMRRRER
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
2015 2014
—E-fF —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment 1 E Y & 22 9
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRARAIKE 135,585 162,287
Available-for-sale investment A ERE - 100
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 3,667 1,481
Loan to a subsidiary Mk E A RELMER 100,940 80,754
240,214 244,631

162

SHENG YUAN HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

39. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

39. EEARQTMBKRAERER (&)

2015 2014
—E—EHEF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TE(TFRIA 655 778
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E RS 39,476 94,242
Cash and cash equivalents He MIReZERIAHR 1,999 39,104
42,130 134,124
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals HtEERRETER 811 719
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERWEB A RRE 75 24,531
886 25,250
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Convertible bonds AR ES 113,213 104,087
113,213 104,087
Net assets BEFE 168,245 249,418
EQUITY R
Share capital %N 174,328 173,588
Reserves (note) e (BIRE) (6,083) 75,830
Total equity R 168,245 249,418

On behalf of the Board

Wu Siu Lam, William

D
Director

EF

KRESFS

Cheng Kit Sum, Clara
BRI
Director

EE
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39. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 39. EAAXRLQRMBMRRARESR &)
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Note: BRE

Capital ~ Convertible Contingent
Share  Shareholder’s redemption ~ bondequity  consideration  Shareoption  Accumulated
premium  contribution reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
iERES
RiEE BErE BABERE EndE IARERE  BRESE 2B 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T ThL T

At1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-A 174173 7834 417 = - 16,233 (24,170) (25,453
Issue of shares upon exercise of  REREETEMR ARG

share options 1,904 - - - - (685) - 1,219
Issue of convertible bonds BUARES = = - 34,408 = - = 34,408
Acquistton of a subsidiary I il 7N 50,003 - - - 28943 - - 7903
Equity-settled share-based BAEERDIF

payment - = = - = 4218 = 4218
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS 51,007 - - 34,408 28,943 3533 = 118,881
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (17,598) (17,59)

Other comprehensive income Hto2ENE - - - - - - - -

Total comprehensiveincome ~ EA2ERELE

for the year - - - - - - (17,598) (17,598)
Forfeiture of share options RUERE - - - - - (7,074 7,074 -
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=1-A 226,170 7834 41 34,408 28,943 12,692 (234,694) 75,830

Capital ~ Convertible  Contingent
Share Shareholder’s  redemption  bond equity consideration ~ Share option ~ Accumulated
premium  contribution reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES
RiEE RREE REREGRH BaRfE AARERE  BRERR ZithE Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER Tén Tén TEn Tén Tén TEn

At1 January 2015 R-E-5E-F-H 226,170 7,834 an 34,408 28,943 12,692 (234,694) 75,830
lssue of shares upon exercise of  REREETEMERA

share options 3,204 - - - - (1,083) - 2,211
Transactions with owners HREAZR S 3,204 - - - - (1,083) - 2,211
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (84,124) (84,124)
Other comprehensive income Ath2EkE - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income ~ EA2ENREE

for the year - - - - - - (84,124) (84,124
Transfer to accumulated losses  ERZZitEE - - - - (28,043) - 28,943 -
Forfeiture of share options R RE - - - - - (3,142 3,142 -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-E%+ZA=1-H 229,464 7,834 a1 34,408 - 8,467 (286,733) (6,083)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or the assets or liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

Name

1

Country/Place

of incorporation

or registration

LT ATE!

BRES/HE

40. A AFIME A RFR

TR EEBRUAREERENEE
FEEERTEXEZARTNBAR
Al BEERA - RHUEMHBERRFS
SLRBBRILE °

Principal
activities and
place of operations

IERBREELY

Beijing Herun Daxin Asset
Management Limited*®

ERMEEREEER
BRALAR

Kingwell Management Limited"

BNERBRAR"

Sheng Yuan Asset Management
Limited"

BREETEARARA

Sheng Yuan Capital (Hong Kong)
Limited"

BREA(RE)BRAR"
Sheng Yuan China Dragon

Internet Winning Fund SP##
BREREHBREES™

PRC

T

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

&R

Cayman Islands

SRS

Particulars of Proportion of
issued shares/ nominal value of issued/
paid-up capital paid-up capital/interests
BRTRG/ BT/ HRRE/
BHEAHE BEAERML
Held by the Held by the
Company subsidiaries
ARRRE  WRAFES
Paid-up capital of - 99.9%
RMB10,000,000
EHAARARE10,000,0007C
Ordinary shares of 100% =
HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 B L E @R
Ordinary shares of - 100%
HK$20,000,000
20,000,000 8 T E @i
Ordinary shares of - 100%
HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 T &
Redeemable shares of - 80%
HK$60,000,000 (note) (note)
60,000,000 & LRI (BiiE) (fE)

Proprietary trading in
the PRC
RAEETLRR S

Provision of
administrative services
to group entities in
Hong Kong

MEEEEERRL
THR%

Provision of investment
management and
advisory services in
Hong Kong

REBREREER
RERRS

Provision of corporate
finance advisory services
in Hong Kong

REBREAEREREM
i

Fund investment

EeRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. AR FEMEABFE &)
COMPANY (Continued)
Country/Place Particulars of Proportion of Principal
of incorporation issued shares/ nominal value of issued/ activities and
Name or registration paid-up capital paid-up capital/interests place of operations
B BRTRR/ BT/ BRRE/
£ ERER/HE BB ERAERML TEEBREENY

Held by the Held by the
Company subsidiaries

ARARE  WEAAESE

Sheng Yuan Finance Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 - 100% Provision of money lending
services in Hong Kong

ERMBARAR BE 1ATERR REBREE TR

Sheng Yuan Financial Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 100% Proprietary trading in

(HK) Limited" Hong Kong
BRERER(BE)GRAR" A 1BTERKR REBETLERS
Sheng Yuan Financial Services British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares of 100% - Proprietary trading in

Group Limited® US$5,500 Hong Kong

E TP 5500 £ £ RERRTLERS

Sheng Yuan Huanyu Trading PRC Paid-up capital of = 100%  Trading of chemical

(Shenzhen) Limited™® HK$7,000,000 products in the PRC
ERETES(RY)BRARe & 7,000,000 BT EHER RPERECIER
Sheng Yuan Resources Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary shares of = 100%  Trading of chemical

HK$37,000,000 products in Hong Kong
BRERERAR" Eh 87,000,000 57 & i@ REBER( IEm
Sheng Yuan Securities Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Securities dealing,
HK$65,000,000 margin financing,
securities placing and
underwriting and
investment advisory
services in Hong Kong

BREFERAR" &E 65,000,000 & &R REBRETESRS -
FRRE  BHRE
RAGHRE R RE
ERR%

Sheng Yuan Services Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100% - Provision of
administrative services
to group entities in
Hong Kong

ERRBARAR" 3 1ETERR REREEERRL
THR%
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RFE+-_A=+—RALEE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XA FMBARFE &)
COMPANY (Continued)
Country/Place Particulars of Proportion of Principal
of incorporation issued shares/ nominal value of issued/ activities and
Name or registration paid-up capital paid-up capital/interests place of operations
B BRIRG/ BT/ BRRE/
£ ERER/HE BHEAHE BEAERML IEEBREELY

Held by the Held by the
Company subsidiaries

ARNARE  KELTARA

Sheng Yuan Tiancheng Investment ~ PRC
Advisory (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.**®*

BRRIRERA (R BRAF e o
Shenzhen Junzhi Trading Limited™*¢  PRC
MIEBESARAR e el

Shenzhen Qianhai Sheng Yuan PRC
Equity Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd.*®*
ApERRREREEEER G
BRAE

Ying Oushi (Beijing) Business PRC
Development Limited*®
HET (AR BXERERRAA

limited liability company

wholly foreign-owned enterprise
Sino-foreign equity joint venture

# newly invested/established in the year
" audited by BDO Limited

Paid-up capital of - 100% Provision of investment
RMB3,020,000 advisory services in
the PRC
EHERARS 3,020,000 R Bt B RERIMR
Paid-up capital of - 99.9% Investment holding in
RMB10,000,000 the PRC
EHERARE10,000,0007 R EETRERR
Paid-up capital of = 100% Provision of advisory
RMB4,010,000 services to private equity
funds in the PRC
EAEARARK4,010,0007C - 100%  RPERELEREES
ERRS
Paid-up capital of = 99.9% Investment holding in
RMB2,000,000 the PRC
EHEARARE2,000,0007 R B TR AR

© AREEA

" NEEELE

o PAELE

© o OREEIRE L2 AT

© AEBUEREEHOEHAERA

Gk
@ the financial statements of these subsidiaries have been audited by 2 MAEBIZLAEARMES - ZFMHMER
BDO Limited for the purpose of the Group’s consolidation AR RE BB EERGR
BN =P A R A R EZ
Note: Pursuant to the subscription agreements, the Group’s interest in MiaE : BERERR  AEER LG ER
the above investment fund is in the form of redeemable shares. The 2 Em AR BERIRGNOE o ZER]
redeemable shares do not empower the Group for any voting right. BERIRGO I EE TAEEEMRIEE

1E -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
R

Period from
1 May 2011 to
31 December

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—
EH—HZE
—T—%F
+=HA=+—8H
BE @—E-—-F —E—=F —Z—NF =ZE-IEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T THETT FET
RESULTS E
Revenue ek 1,697 7,251 62,136 414,588 405,678
Loss before taxation E&EiATEIE (37,856) (49,651) (40,091) (2,650) (31,730)
Taxation i1 - (81) (155) (2,379) (2,668)
Loss for the year FAEE (37,856) (49,732) (40,246) (5,029) (34,398)
As at As at 31 December
31 December R+=A=+—8H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
I
—T——4F
+=—A=+—B8B —E——% —T—=F —ZT-NF ZZB-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T FHET T FHxT
ASSETS AND BEREE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BELE 160,607 118,661 119,404 528,401 671,161
Total liabilities ELErGES (69,941) (13,888) (48,856) (314,175) (492,873)
90,666 104,773 70,548 214,226 178,288
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